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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B HE
RESULTS
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET T BT FEL
Revenue g 674,197 603736 489,853 297,066 293,820
Gross profit EM 184,899 185,578 144,984 74,534 44411
Profit for the year F A% F 90,076 99,121 93,206 42,851 20,772
Profit attributable to: U TEBEEERR
Equity holders of the Company ARAERFEA 89,943 97,305 92,150 42778 20,744
Non-controlling interests FERER 133 1,816 1,056 73 28
90,076 99,121 93206 42,85 20,772
Total Assets BEE 344,794 214612 227,200 144,341 91733
Total Liabilities BaE 103,513 98775 110,324 88210 52459
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual report of

the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

2012 has been a difficult year for the air cargo industry as there was weak demand in
most of Asia’s export markets. In China and Taiwan, the air cargo throughput dropped
significantly by |1.5% and 3.2% respectively when compared with 201 [, while the air cargo
throughput in Hong Kong increased slightly by 2.2% at the same time.

As mentioned in last year's annual report, we expected uncertainties would continue to
loom over the global economy, and that this would affect overall air cargo demand. Global
economic growth has remained unstable since the second quarter of 2011, persisting
for the entire year of 2012. Exports from China to most of the major economies have
been adversely affected as well. As a result, air cargo demand among major economies
has weakened. Still other negative developments include the rapid rise in capacity from
2008 to 201 | resulting from the conversion of older 747-400 passenger airliners to cargo
freighters; bulk delivery of next-generation wide-body passenger airplanes; and increasing

number of new airlines, all of which placed downward pressure on the air cargo industry.

Despite the numerous challenges faced during the year, we were able to increase revenue,
which amounted to HK$674.2 million, while gross profit stood at HK$184.9 million and
net profit after tax totaled HK$90.1 million. This has fulfilled our commitment to maintain

solid earnings growth even in the face of a depressed air cargo market.

During the year, we continued to expand our operations, with the number of branch
offices increasing from 16in 201 | to 21 in 2012. The number of airlines that we represent
or have been appointed has risen as well, up from over 30 in 201 | to over 40 in 2012.
The management strongly believes that we should continue to bolster operations even
though present market conditions are depressed because the long term prospects for our

air cargo business in Hong Kong, China and Asia remain promising.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

OUTLOOK FOR 2013

Looking ahead, we expect the operating environment will improve during the course of
2013. The final two months of 2012 actually showed signs of a rebound based on export
data from Hong Kong and China. The purchasing managers’ confidence survey conducted
by IATA/Markit/JP Morgan and consumer confidence index from Haver Analytics about
the air cargo industry further suggest an improvement trend. While slow global economic
growth remains a challenge, we do expect the US economy to expand at a modest pace
and with less uncertainty than in 2012; in Europe, conditions will remain complicated
leading to little or no growth, hence the possible contraction in air cargo capacity; as for
the Asia Pacific, it will continue to outpace other regions; while China's export growth
will perform better than in 2012. We also expect concems about over-capacity to ease
as there are indications that the retirement of aging 747-200/300 airliners and certain
737 and 727 freighters will occur at a faster pace since such airplanes are no longer
competitive due to their high fuel consumption and operating costs; new airline growth

rate has been much slower as well, and consolidation of capacity has become apparent.

As one of the leading air freight solution providers in the wholesale market, we are
committed to sustaining growth momentum and strengthening our market presence.
We will therefore continue to work with more airlines, develop new niche markets in
developing countries and look for bundling different airline products. Furthermore, we will
continue to expand our network across China, Asia and Europe, and develop an e-platform

that addresses the logistical needs of e-commerce and internet shopping business models.
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APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank the management and the entire ASR
workforce, including the staff of our subsidiary companies, for their dedication and hard
work. | also wish to extend a word of gratitude to our shareholders, board of Directors,

and business partners for their continuous support.

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

E 6
RAERLBEHEEELHF2RBET(BR
BETHBARED)NHBMEMR TS - F
BHRR  EFGREBBHOTEIFHMU
HRHE

*E
REREE
&7 - 2013F3821 8

Annual Report £ 3 2012 > 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRRER DN

OVERVIEW

The Group's strategic position in the wholesale market has enabled it to secure a large
number of freight forwarder clients. Indicative of the strong alliances that have been built,
the Group handled approximately 42,689 tons of cargo during the reporting year. Of
the more than 1,000 customers that the Group served in 2012, the top 100 accounted
for approximately 70% of the total sales for the year. In addition to their important
contribution to the Group's revenue, the strong customer base also provides leverage for

the Group to bolster business ties with airlines and integrated carriers.

The on-selling of air cargo space has continued to principally involve outbound air
routes, departing from Hong Kong, Macau, China, Taiwan, Japan and Korea to a vast
number of global destinations. During the reporting year, the Group was responsible
for the marketing and on-selling of air cargo space assigned by more than 40 airlines
and integrated carriers. Through the ability to bundle different air routes from the
aforementioned parties, the Group is able to formulate ideal air cargo solutions that

encompass the most competitive schedule and price for our customers.

Having continued to realise revenue and profit growth, it is clearly evident that the
Group's competitive strengths are valuable during both peaks and troughs in the market.
Consequently, the Group will continue to capitalise on these strengths, which include
its self-sustaining business; wholesale market positioning, expansive network of air cargo
routes; strategic focus on the deferred air freight and the developing countries; and highly

experienced management team.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Consistent with the Group's objective of becoming a premier air freight solutions provider
in Asia, it will persist with the strategy to further augment its service network in Asia,
China and Europe through the opening of additional branches and subsidiaries. This will
allow the Group to enhance services delivered by local workforce since it would back
expansion efforts with additional administrative support. Complementing service network
expansion will be extension of air cargo routes to the same regions aforementioned. To
realise this goal, the Group will leverage its healthy association with a number of airlines,
and will consider establishing new alliances as well. Concurrent with all of these efforts,
the management will look to explore and tap niche markets, particularly in developing
countries, as well as seek to bundle different airline products to create new business
opportunities. Also with the innovative ideas in mind, the Group will advance its e-platform
booking system, which, along with raising the efficiency of the booking process, will help

accommodate the logistical needs of e-commerce and intemet shopping business models.

REVENUE

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately HK$674.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2012, representing an increase of approximately |1.7% when compared
with last year. This was due to an increase in air cargo handled by the Group, rising from

35,103 tons for the year ended 31 December 2011 to 42,689 tons for this year.

REVENUE FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Revenue derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately HK$30.4 million or 8.9% to approximately HK$372.9 million for the year
2012 (201 1: approximately HK$342.5 million). The increase in revenue was primarily due
to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations
in Asian countries and entering into new purchasing arrangements with airlines/integrated

carriers.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Europe increased by approximately
HK$9.3 million or 6.6% to approximately HK$150.7 million for the year 2012 (201 1:
approximately HK$141.4 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due
to our Group's continued effort in providing air cargo services covering the destinations in

Europe and Russia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRRER DN

Revenue derived from flight destinations in America increased by approximately HK$29.2
million or 66.8% to approximately HK$72.9 million for the year 2012 (201 |: approximately
HK$43.7 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due to the increase
in air cargo handled by the Group during the year, which also included the destination in

North America.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately HK$1.6
million or 2.1% to approximately HK$77.7 million for the year 2012 (201 I: approximately
HK$76.1 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due to our Group's
continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations in Africa and
entering into new purchasing arrangements with airlines/integrated carriers in the year

2012 for serving the flight destinations in Africa.

GROSS PROFIT

Overall gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 0.4% from approximately
HK$185.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$184.9
million for this year, and overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 30.7%
to approximately 27.4% respectively. The contractions were due to excess capacity

available on the market.

GROSS PROFIT FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region decreased by
approximately 2.7% from approximately HK$160.3 million in 2011 to approximately
HK$155.9 million in 2012, which was primarily attributable to the weak demand in most

of Asia’s market,

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately 24.0%
from approximately HK$15.0 million in 201 | to approximately HK$ 1.4 million in 2012,
which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit growth in providing air
cargo services covering the destinations in Western Europe due to the persistent adverse

effect of the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in America increased by approximately 10.3%
from approximately HK$3.9 million in 201 | to approximately HK$4.3 million in 2012,
which was primarily attributable to our Group's more focus on providing air cargo services

covering the destinations in America.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately 107.8%
from approximately HK$6.4 million in 201 | to approximately HK$13.3 million in 2012,
which was primarily attributable to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo

services covering the destinations in Africa.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group's administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$77.9 million (2011: approximately HK$71.0 million), representing
an increase of approximately 9.7% when compared with last year, which accounted for
approximately | 1.5% of the Group's tumover (201 1: approximately | 1.8%). The increase
in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in number of employees and

expansion of Group's network.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group’s bank borrowings.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation to the operations of

the Group in the PRC, Macau and Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRRER DN

PROFITABILITY

In 2012, the Group's profit attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$89.9 million (201 1: approximately HK$97.3 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 7.6% as compared to 201 |. The decrease was mainly due to an increase in
cost of sales and administrative expenses by approximately 15.9% as compared to 201 I.
Margin of profit attributable to equity holders for the year was approximately 13.3% (2011
approximately 16.1%), representing a decrease of approximately 2.8 percentage points as

compared to 201 I,

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's return on equity was approximately
37.5% (201 I: approximately 86.2%), which is calculated as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company divided by equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company, representing a decrease of approximately 48.7 percentage points as compared
to 201 1. The Group's relatively lower return on equity recorded was a result of a
decrease in the Group's profit attributable to equity holders and the increase in share

capital and reserves after the listing of the Company as compared to 201 1.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables (net) increased by around 45% from approximately
HK$71.6 million as at 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$103.8 million as at 31
December 2012. The increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the increase in
revenue. The average trade receivables turnover days increased from 43 days in 2011 to

47 days in 2012.

The Group's policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for 2012 was the same as
that for 2011. Our Group did not make any general allowance for doubtful debts and no
specific allowance for doubtful debts was considered necessary and provided for 2012
(20111 nil). For the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group did not have any bad
debts written-off (201 1: HK$91,312).

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group's trade payables primarily relate to the credit term provided by airlines. The
Group's trade payables increased by around 12.7% from approximately HK$60.6 million
as at 31 December 201 | to approximately HK$68.2 million as at 31 December 2012. The
average trade payables tumover days decreased from 56 days in 201 | to 48 days in 2012,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits payable; and (i) accrued
expenses for utilities. The balance of other payables increased by approximately 18.2%
to approximately HK$20.! million as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 201 I:
approximately HK$17.0 million) mainly due to an increase in the number of staff as a

result of the Group's business growth.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's net cash inflow from operating activities for the year 2012 amounted
to approximately HK$57.7 million (201 1: approximately HK$86.6 million). As at 31
December 2012, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$192.9 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$99.3 million as compared with the
position as at 31 December 201 |. The increase was mainly due to the cash inflows from

capital contribution as a result of the listing of the Company during the year 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an un-utilised bank facilities of approximately
HK$ 1114 million (201 I: approximately HK$53.6 million). During the year 201 | and 2012,
the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 3|1 December 2012, the
gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total bank borrowings over total assets, was
0% (201 1: 0%).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$334.9
million (201 1: approximately HK$198.1 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$102.1 million (201 I: approximately HK$98.3 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was approximately 3.3 (201 I:

approximately 2.0).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRRER DN

NET CURRENT ASSETS
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$232.7

million. The key components of current assets as at 31 December 2012 included cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$192.9 million, pledged deposits of approximately
HK$24.9 million, trade receivables of approximately HK$103.8 million, and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$10.3 million. The key components
of current liabilities included trade payables of approximately HK$68.2 million, income
tax payable of approximately HK$13.9 million and other payables and accruals of

approximately HK$20.1 million.

The net current assets increased from approximately HK$99.8 million as at 31 December
2011 to approximately HK$232.7 million as at 31 December 2012 which primarily
represents the increase in cash and cash equivalents which is mainly due to cash inflows

from capital contribution as a result of the listing of the Company during the year 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Group had an un-utilised bank facility of approximately HK$ 11 1.4 million as at 31
December 2012 and the facility was secured by the pledged deposits of approximately
HK$24.9 million of our Group. Certain airlines and integrated carriers would require their
air cargo wholesalers to deliver bank guarantees before their appointments. The aggregate
guarantee amount provided was approximately HK$63.9 million as at 31 December 2012
(2011 approximately HK$49.6 million). Saved as disclosed above, we had no material

contingent liabilities and guarantees.

CONTRACTUAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 3| December 2012, the Group had operating leases commitments of approximately

HK$4.8 million (201 I: approximately HK$5.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
2012, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure, after
netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not very significant.
However, our management monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had |74 full-time employees (201 1: 48 full-time

employees). The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually
according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.
Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong
Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any amount of money to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs incurred for the year ended
31 December 2012 were approximately HK$45.8 million (201 I: approximately HK$34.9

million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2012,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an air freight solution provider positioned in the wholesale market. The
Group principally involves purchasing air cargo space from airlines and/or integrated
carriers and on-selling such space to our customers, namely freight forwarders. Airlines
and integrated carriers generally engage their respective appointed wholesalers and freight
forwarders to market and/or on-sell their air cargo space for ease of management, cost
effectiveness and minimizing credit exposure instead of dealing with a large pool of freight
forwarders and shippers themselves. The Group’s main role for airlines and integrated
carriers is to source a necessary amount of air cargos from freight forwarders on a timely

basis to enable them to maximise the utilisation of air cargo space of their aircrafts.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 7

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 53 to 54 of this annual

report.

The interim dividend of HK3.3 cents (201 1: Nil) per share was paid during the year. The
Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK3.5 cents (201 1: HK6.8 cents)
per ordinary share in respect of current year to the Shareholders. Details of the dividends

are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$25. 1
million (201 1: HK$37.6 million). Details of movements in reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the consolidated

financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its

respectively in the financial year were as follows:

major customers and suppliers
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FREFRHEERD

AEERPREESBAEERF RELEREE
R SHE KB -

Year ended 3| December

BENANALEE

2012 2011

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

EREREN  HREXRED

Bk B

The largest customer BARP 4.4% 6.0%
Five largest customers AREP 12.4% 16.9%
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

EHRREBY HAEREBH

B B

The largest supplier RAHIER 16.3% 24.9%
Five largest suppliers TR ER 51.2% 61.1%

All of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third

parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or

any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has

any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 3| December 201 | and 31 December 2012, the Group did not have long-term and

short-term bank loans.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year are set out in

Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years

is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association

or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's shares for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as

follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Jin Cai

Dr. Zhang Xianlin

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony
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In accordance with article 86(3) of the Company's articles of association, all the existing
Directors will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 39 to

47 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") has an unexpired service contract with any member of the Group
which is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

financial year under review or at any time during the financial year under review.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/her compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 29 December 201 | (details are
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders”). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition

have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December

2012 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its
employees. The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits

to employees beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$1,000 per month before | June 2012, and commenced from | June 2012,
the amount has been increased to HK$1,250. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company

or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES RRAHNEFRE
Number of

Ordinary Shares Percentage
Director S Nature of Interest EEtE EEREE Botk
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE Corporate NS 258,000,000 64.5%
Personal fEA 34,000,000 85%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard EEMEE Corporate yNC] 258,000,000 64.5%
Personal A 4,000,000 1.0%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEETE Corporate NS 258,000,000 64.5%
Personal A 4,000,000 1.0%
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

REBZENRO RAERDNFR

Name of Associated

Corporation Percentage
Director E= B EEEE BO
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE ASR Victory 333%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEERE ASR Victory 333%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BERLE ASR Victory 33.3%

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not hold any short positions in shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which had been recorded in the register required

to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained under

Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following

substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the

Company's issued share capital:
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FERFREAAR ZROIEBRG 2%
E%E

RARERE  BRIEEF KB GRHIE 336 (&
FEZFERREZMET  ARAIEMET
NEERR 2 ERRABERRAF 2 EEITR
A5%IA L

Number of

Ordinary Shares Percentage
Name "H ZEREE Bot
ASR Victory Limited (note 1) ASR Victory Limited (Ff7E |) 258,000,000 64.5%
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (note 1) FBEREE M) 292,000,000 73.0%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (note ) BEME S (M) 262,000,000 65.5%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (note 1) BEBAEMT) 262,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise (note 1) BEEZ LT (M) 292,000,000 73.0%
Ms. Ng Hoi Shan (note ) RIGML L (M) 262,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna (note 1) Mardamshina Zhanna 2 (Fi#E 1) 262,000,000 65.5%

Note:

(1) ASR Victory is beneficially owned as to 33.33% by each of Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki. Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise, Ms. Ng Hoi Shan and
Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna, being the spouses of Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung,

Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, respectively, are deemed to be interested in the shares

held by ASR Victory under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in the

shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be

recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Worldwide Logistics is the beneficial owner of 40% shareholding in ASR Worldwide and

therefore is a Connected Person of our Company.

During the year ended 3| December 2012, ASR Logistics, AOE Freight and ASR
Worldwide had been supplying air cargo space to Worldwide Logistics. The supply
of air cargo space arrangement is of a continuing nature and will constitute continuing
connected transactions for our Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules
upon listing. However, such connected transactions were constituted only because
Worldwide Logistics is a Connected Person of our Company by virtue of its relationship
with our Company's subsidiary (i.e. ASR Worldwide) and Worldwide Logistics has no
other connected relationship with our Company. As the assets, profits and revenue
size test ratios of ASR Worldwide represent less than 5% for the financial year 2012,
ASR Worldwide is considered as an insignificant subsidiary of our Company pursuant
to Rule 14A31 (9) (b) of the Listing Rules and such connected transactions will be
exempted from all the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as the above mentioned, no transaction was entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012 which constitute connected transactions under the Listing

Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 3| December 2012 is contained in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was conditionally
adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on
3 December 2011, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion and on
such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any employee(s) (whether full time or
part time including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price for
such number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected employee(s) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or

potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 0% of the Shares in issue on the date of this report. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee (s) (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in
any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue

from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an

option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance

of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which must
be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than

the nominal amount of one Share.
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The Company has granted a total of 7,980,000 share options to certain eligible employees
under the Share Option Scheme on 7 December 2012, the exercise price of options
granted is HK$1.83 per share. The options have a term of 3.5 years commencing from
7 December 2012; or until the early termination of the options in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme, exercisable from 7 December 2014. All the eligible employees
accepted the granted options. As at 31 December 2012, the proceeds of share-based
payment amounted to approximately HK$94,000 is recognized as the employee benefit

expense.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012,

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the year, the Group had no material litigations and arbitrations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place subsequent to 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance is conducive to enhancing the Group’s overall performance
and accountability is essential in modern corporate administration. The Board, which
includes three independent non-executive Directors out of a total of six Directors, is
responsible for setting strategic, management and financial objectives and continuously
observes the principles of good corporate governance and devotes considerable effort to
identifying and formalising best practice to ensure the interests of Shareholders, including

those of minority Shareholders, are protected.

ASR Holdings Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its shares listing on
the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date"). The corporate governance
rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code from the Listing
Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code from |
April 2012 until 31 December 2012 respectively, except for the deviations from code

provisions A.2. and A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The positions of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the Company

had been both previously carried on by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny.

In order to comply with this code provision, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer were separated with effect from 7 December 2012. Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard,
being Executive Director of the Company, was appointed to the post of CEO, Logistics
and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, being Executive Director of the Company, was appointed to the
post of CEO, General Sales Agent effective from 7 December 2012. Subsequent to the

aforesaid change, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny remains as the Chairman of the Company.

AN A
EREBRSE

RENERERAOREAAEENERER
ﬁ MARHERAKNEXEREHERE - EF
BRARNZEFTH=ZBUNFATES

ﬁﬁﬂi%% EELMBRE  REEET
REFCEERRA UERAZRAENBHR

EFEREEREN  RRRRER
R MER) REIRE -

(BHELH

BEFERERRARAINFSHSTMAL - Bk
?R20126 1 A 16 B ([ LA EBRM L
o BARARAINEEE AT A EMHRA
s+ mmE e EE TR - EFGRA - K
DREDAIR ETBEZE2012F3 /831 HILEM
—EETOEERTAMERR2012F4R 1
BEZ01NF A3 BLEBEA-—EETFLE

T BT RIS ST ANES - M IRBE T AT
M EBRTUBRIXEALIEREALTIE
BRM o

FRIRSTA 2 1E

REBERERTRIGEXALIG  TFETH
BHcACERERD - U TERAR— AR
HRAE o ARF)EFERITHAEBRBE AT BR
EREE—ABE-

RBICEIESFANES - FE2012F 12 A7 B #EST
TERBRTREZABKHNESD - RABRIT
ERELHAERZAATREBE - MRE
B RAARMITEZRERLEEZAR
THEH - BHEREEY - 820126128
THEREY - ELllBE%E - RIERLEDE
EARRRER

Annual Report £ % 2012 > 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

As Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny will continue to be responsible for
overall business strategy, financial management and development of our Group as a whole
and the operation of the Board. Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard will be principally responsible
for the development and management of our Group's non-exclusive sales business while
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki will be principally responsible for the development of the Group's

general sales agent business.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the independent non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings. However, due to other business
commitment, the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Tyen Kan
Hee, Anthony did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May
2012.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which currently comprises six members,
consisting of three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board met four times during the year ended 3| December 2012 for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Details of the attendance records are set

out below:

Executive Directors

HTES

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEEEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAUFHTES

Mr. Wei Jin Cai iR K&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REME L
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on

the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The list of all Directors is set out under Corporate Information on page 2 and
the independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate

communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management on pages 39 to 47.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business operations of the Group.
Decisions made are driven for the best interest of the Shareholders and maximizing the
Shareholders' wealth. The Directors formulate strategic directions, oversee the operations

and monitor the financial and management performance of the Group as a whole.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 (1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. All the independent non-executive Directors have
the appropriate qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed by the Board and the Board considers that all independent

non-executive Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and shall be subject to

retirement by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by

Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
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INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of his appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, Directors are continually updated on the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices and to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors in compliance with code provision Al.8. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements

and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of
the Group. The intemal auditor reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors any
risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the audit committee on any findings and

measures to address the variances and identified risks.

During the year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The review covered the
financial reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board also reviewed the
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 48 to 49.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to approximately HK$ 1.5 million
(2011: HK$1.8 million) and HK$0.2 million (201 1: HK$0.2 million) in respect of the annual
audit and non-audit services respectively. For the year ended 31 December 201 I, the
remuneration paid amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million in respect of the service

for acting as the reporting accountant in relation to the listing of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted

on the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The roles and

functions of the audit committee include the following;

. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor before submission

to the Board;

. to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditor; and

. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and associated

procedures.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors (namely,
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Zhang Xianlin) who possess the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is
an independent non-executive Director. None of the members of the audit committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The audit committee has
separate and independent access to the advice and services of the senior management
of the Company, and is able to seek independent professional advice at the Company's

expense upon reasonable request.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
reviewed its revised terms of reference, the Group's annual results and report for the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Group's interim result and report for the period ended
30 June 2012, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report of internal
auditor from the management on the Company's internal control and risk management
review and processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditor, subject to approval
by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the attendance

records of the audit committee are set out below:

Member

K&

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WRA K&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 I. The

roles and functions of the remuneration committee include the following;

. making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure

and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management;

. establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in

deciding his own remuneration; and

. determining annual remuneration package by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The remuneration committee comprises five members, namely, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr.
Zhang Xianlin, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of remuneration committee had been Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who was
an independent non-executive Director. Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony has relinquished
his position as the chairman of remuneration committee on 7 December 2012 but will
remain as a member of remuneration committee. Dr. Zhang Xianlin who has been a
member of remuneration committee was appointed as the chairman of remuneration
committee on 7 December 2012. He is an independent non-executive Director. Two
meetings were held by the remuneration committee during the year ended 3| December
2012. All members attended the meetings. The remuneration committee reviewed its
revised terms of reference during the meeting. Details of the attendance records of the

remuneration committee members are set out below:

Member

291

Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny FERIEE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEmEE
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WIRA K&
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 . The roles

and functions of the nomination committee include the following:

. reviewing the Board structure;
. monitoring the nomination, appointment and succession planning of Directors; and
. assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises five members, namely Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony,
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Zhang Xianlin,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
nomination committee had been Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who was an independent
non-executive Director. Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony has relinquished his position as the
chairman of nomination committee on 7 December 2012 but will remain as a member
of nomination committee. Mr. Wei Jin Cai who has been a member of nomination
committee was appointed as the chairman of nomination committee on 7 December
2012. He is an independent non-executive Director. Two meetings were held by the
nomination committee during the year ended 31 December 2012. All members attended
the meetings. The nomination committee reviewed its revised terms of reference. Details

of the attendance records of the nomination committee members are set out below:

Member

591

Mr. Wei Jin Cai WA K&
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEmEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEBEE
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL

The nomination procedures are governed by the terms of reference of nomination
committee which are published on the Company's website and the website of the Stock

Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out

below:

. developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees ; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on
16 January 2012.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholder meetings.
The AGM will be held on 23 May 2013. The notice of AGM was sent to Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM. To promote effective communication,
the Company maintains a website at www.asr.com.hk, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company's financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at
the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the Company voting will be announced on
the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM") to be

called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to
the Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director. The relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies
the despatch of this annual report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to

Shareholders of any future AGM.

Article 88 of the Company's articles of association provides that if a Shareholder duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall
deposit a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days
after the dispatch of the notice of annual general meeting of the Company. Details of
the Shareholders' right to propose a person for election as a Director and the related

procedures are set out on the Company's website at www.asr.com.hk.

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the Joint Company Secretaries
at the Company's office in Hong Kong at Units 1107-12, Iith Floor, Lu Plaza, 2 Wing Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors, including three

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (RI&EIR %), aged 52, was appointed as our executive Director
on 28 June 201 | and is the chairman of the Board and one of the Founders. He is
responsible for overall business strategy and development and management of our Group
as a whole. Mr. Yu has over 28 years of experience in the aviation industry. From 1983 to
1989, Mr. Yu worked in various management positions with United Airlines. From 1989
to 1990, he worked as the Central Pacific Manager with Trans World Airlines. From 1990
to 2000, he worked as the General Manager to oversee the operations in Greater China
and the North Asia Region with Lauda Air, a member of the Austrian Airlines Group. In
February 2001, Mr. Yu joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. Mr. Yu has been awarded the Sales Award of the Year 1986
by United Airlines. On 12 December 1996, Mr. Yu graduated from the Chinese University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (B&M# 5 4), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
Director on 28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the
chief executive officer — logistics of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for
the development and management of our Group's non-exclusive sales business. Mr. Mak
has over 21 years of experience in cargo revenue management, product development
and strategic planning. In June 1991, he commenced work with Federal Express as an
account executive, where he was subsequently promoted to Sales Manager and was
responsible for supervising the cargo and express business in Hong Kong and Taiwan. In
October 2000, Mr. Mak joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. On 6 December 1990, Mr. Mak graduated from the University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree, majoring in Chemistry.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (£ 5 %), aged 47, was appointed as our executive Director on
28 June 201 | and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the chief executive
officer — general sales agent of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for the
development and management of our Group’s GSA business. Mr. Law has over 26 years
of experience in the air cargo business. From 1986 to 1995, Mr. Law served Japan Airlines
for airport passenger administration, UTL Service Limited (then GSA of Trans World
Airlines) as a sales executive for the cargo and passenger divisions, and Lauda Air in its
cargo department. He started his service with Lauda Air as a cargo manager and was
subsequently promoted to a regional cargo manager. In April 1995, Mr. Law joined Orient
Air (HK) Limited, which was principally engaged in the wholesale of air cargo space from
GSA agreements, as a director. In 2007, Mr. Law joined our Group for the development

of our GSA business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wei Jin Cai ({887 5t 4), aged 63, was appointed as our independent non-executive

Director on | July 201 1. Mr. Wei has over 44 years of experience in civil aviation. From
April 1969 to March 1970, Mr. Wei worked in the Chengdu branch of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. In October 1970, Mr. Wei was promoted to work in the
headquarters of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. From August 1985 to March
1993, Mr. Wei acted as the deputy party secretary of the Party Committee of Institution
of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. He was appointed as the party secretary of
Civil Aviation Management Institute of China in March 1993 and was promoted as the
president in October 2008. Mr. Wei retired from the Civil Aviation Management Institute
of China in August 2010. Mr. Wei is currently an independent non-executive Director of
China Southem Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 1055), a company which shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is concurrently acting as an independent director of
Xiamen Iport Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 600897), a company which shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He had also been an independent director of
Shandong Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 200152), a company which shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange during the period form March 2006 to June 2012.
Mr. Wei graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China majoring in economics and management through distance learning in
December 1994. He conducted an in-depth study on the operation and management of

civil aviation.
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Dr. Zhang Xianlin ((REMB L), aged 59, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on | October 201 |. Dr. Zhang has over 34 years of experience in the
areas of accounting and management and in the aviation industry. Dr. Zhang graduated
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
majoring in economics and management through distance leamning in December 1997. He
then obtained from Huazhong University of Science and Technology a Master's Degree in
Business Administration and a Doctoral Degree in Management in December 1998 and
December 2004 respectively. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. During the period from March 1978 to December 1996,
he served in various positions including senior management positions in the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. Between December 1996 and April 2009, Dr. Zhang had held
various senior managerial positions for several Hong Kong and PRC companies, including
the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited, the general
manager in China National Aviation Company Limited, a director in Hong Kong Dragon
Airlines Limited and the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air China Limited (stock
code: 753) and the chairman of the board of Directors of HNA Group (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited. Dr. Zhang had also been a non-executive Director of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (stock code: 293) during the period from August 1997 to October 2006. He is
currently an independent non-executive Director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited

(stock code: 899), a company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (H#E 8 1), aged 57, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr. Tyen has over 35 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, management and company secretarial practice. He is currently
an independent director of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (formerly known as Elixir
Gaming Technologies, Inc.) (stock code: EGT), a company which shares are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and Alpha Peak Leisure Inc, a company which shares are
listed on the Canada TSX Venture Exchange (stock code: AAP.P) and an independent
non-executive Director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and Melco
Intemational Development Limited (stock code: 200), both of which shares are listed on

the Stock Exchange.
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EERGREEERBE

Dr. Tyen was a director of Show8 Cyber Media Limited (“Show8"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong prior to its dissolution as a result of creditors” voluntary
liquidation commenced on 20 January 2001. Show8 was dissolved in July 2003, Before its
liquidation, Show8 was an Internet content provider. Due to the unfavourable economic
condition at that time and the burst of the Intermnet bubble in year 2000 and the significant
decline in business activities in the Internet sector, Show8 was unable to overcome its
financial difficulty and was then put into liquidation in January 2001. Dr. Tyen confirmed
that he was not involved in the dissolution of Show8 and is not aware of any liability as
a result of the dissolution of Show8. He is also not aware of any outstanding claim from
the creditors of Show8 after the dissolution of the company. In the three years preceding
the date of this annual report, Dr. Tyen was also an independent non-executive Director
of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) and Recruit Holdings Limited
(stock code: 550), both of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen obtained a Doctoral degree in Philosophy and a Master's degree in Business
Administration on 10 December 1998 and 30 October 1986 respectively, both from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently a practicing certified

public accountant in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.

Mr. Ritola, Jouni Juhani, aged 33, is a director of ASR Europe and the beneficial owner
of 40% shareholding in ASR Europe. Mr. Ritola joined our Group on |5 September 2010
and was responsible for overseeing our operations in Europe and Asia. He has over 8
years of experience in project management and the logistics industry. On |7 December
2007 he joined Project Expeditors Limited (formerly known as Polar Logistics Hong
Kong Limited), a project logistics company as a shareholder and director, in which he
was responsible for leading its logistics team and managing its the business operations in
Hong Kong, China, Korea and Japan. On 4 December 2009, Mr. Ritola became the sole
shareholder of Project Expeditors Limited and since then operated it as a sole owner. Mr.
Ritola graduated from the University of Jyvdskyld with a Master of Science in Economics

and Business Administration.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, Michael (B&1=%%), aged 51, is the Director of Freight and Group
Performance Management. Mr. Wong joined our Group on 5 July 2010.

Mr. Wong has over 32 years of experience in the airlines and cargo industries. Since
1981, Mr. Wong worked as a traffic officer for Thai Airways International Limited and
was responsible for daily operations tasks. He was then promoted to traffic supervisor in
1987 and was responsible for overseeing the daily operations at the airport office of Thai
Airways International Limited. He was then promoted to senior traffic supervisor who was
responsible for handling administrative tasks in the airport office such as staff rostering,
training, annual leave approval, coordination/liaison with various service providers and
government authorities. Mr. Wong left Thai Airways International Limited and joined
Emirates Airlines in 1991, where he worked as the senior station supervisor and was
responsible for handling both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office
of Emirates Airlines. Mr. Wong left Emirates Airlines and joined Scandinavian Airlines in
1992, where he worked as the duty station manager and was responsible for handling
both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office of Scandinavian Airlines. At
the same time, Mr. Wong also acted as the deputy station manager at the airport office
of Scandinavian Airlines when the station manager was away from the station. From
September 1993 to January 2000, Mr. Wong worked initially as a duty airport services
manager for Hong Kong International Airport Services Limited and was promoted as the
airport service manager in May 1994 who was responsible for the provision of ramp and
cargo services. He was then transferred to work in the “Planning & Standards” division in
1999. From January 2000 to April 2001, Mr. Wong worked as a terminal service manager
for AHK Air Hong Kong Limited. From July 2001 to February 2003, he worked as a
manager in respect of operations procedure for Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation.
From March 2003 to January 2007, Mr. Wong worked as a service manager for KLM Royal
Dutch Airlines. During his employment with KLM Royal Dutch Airlines, he was seconded
to its Beijing office for about two years. In February 2007, Mr. Wong joined Hong Kong
Dragon Airlines Limited as a security manager. He was then intemally transferred to Hong
Kong Airport Services Limited and worked as a passenger service manager with effect

from November 2008 and up to June 2010.
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In November 1995, Mr. Wong completed the “Station Ground Handling Management”
training course undertaken by IATA which was intended for airline station and ground
handling managers. In September 2001, he completed the Joint DMS program undertaken
by the Hong Kong Management Association and Lingnan University, thus obtaining a
Diploma in Management Studies. Mr. Wong attended and completed the “Safety Audit
and Lead Auditor Course” undertaken by Aviation Consulting & Training Pty Ltd. and
the “Security Quality Control” course undertaken by IATA in April 2007 and May 2007

respectively.

Ms. Ng Yee Ming, Canny (RHKB/ME), aged 38, is the director of finance and
administration. She has over |5 years of experience in the areas of accounting, taxation,
finance and auditing. Prior to joining our Group as an accounting supervisor on |7
November 2000, Ms. Ng worked in a CPA firm from March 1998 to January 1999. From
April 1999 to July 2000, Ms. Ng worked in various positions at DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Property Management Limited. From July 2000 to October 2000, Ms. Ng worked for New
World TMT Limited (formerly known as New World Infrastructure Limited), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 7). Ms.
Ng graduated from the University of Technology, Sydney with a Bachelor of Business
degree in October 1997. She was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in December
1997 and advanced to the status of Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia in
July 2002.

Mr. Fok Kam Man, Billy (B#8X5E4), aged 47, is the director of GSA. Mr. Fok has over
26 vyears of experience in the aviation industry. Prior to joining our Group on 2 February
2009, Mr. Fok had worked as the passenger traffic agent and then a lead agent in the
passenger traffic section of Japan Airlines from October 1987 to July 1993. From July 1993
to January 1996, Mr. Fok worked as a junior dealer for Emperor Management Services
(Overseas) Limited. From February 1996 to October 2008, Mr. Fok worked initially as
a passenger services supervisor for Menzies Macau Airport Services Limited and was
promoted to the position of senior duty manager. Mr. Fok graduated from the School
of Continuing Studies, the Macau University of Science and Technology with a degree of

Bachelor of International Tourism Management.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Lee Wai Man, Tom (F&3%4), aged 41, is the general manager for the air freight
and operations of our Group. Mr. Lee has over with 19 years of experience in the logistics
industry. Prior to joining our Group on 16 June 1997, he had worked for different freight
forwarding companies. After joining our Group, he has served various positions including
operations supervisor, assistant operations manager, consolidation manager and assistant
general manager. He was promoted to his current position in 2008. Mr. Lee completed a

Dangerous Goods Diploma which was undertaken by IATA and Cathay Pacific in 2003.

Mr. Liu K K (BIF 5 4), aged 31, is the regional sales manager of our South China
operations. Mr. Liu joined our Group on | August 2005 and has over six years of
experience with the logistics industry. After joining our Group, he has served various
positions including the cargo salesman and the cargo sales manager. He was promoted to
his current position in 2012. He graduated from Guangzhou University with a Bachelor

degree of hospitality management in June 2005.

Ms. Feng Qian Qing, Connie (5fEM/NH), aged 44, is the manager for finance and
administration of our South China operations and our PRC internal compliance officer.
Ms. Feng has over |7 years of experience in the areas of accounting and finance. Prior to
joining our Group as an accounts officer on | November 2005, Ms. Feng worked as an
accounts officer for the Guangzhou branch office of a shipping company from November
1994 to June 1997. From November 2000 to August 2005, she worked as the chief
accounts officer for Guangzhou Chengtong Investment Consultant Limited. After joining
our Group in September 2005, she was promoted as the assistant finance manager
for our South China operations, stationing at the Guangzhou branch of AOE Freight
(Shenzhen). In October 2008, she was further promoted as the manager for finance
and administration of our South China operations. Ms. Feng graduated from Guangzhou
Institute of Technology (formerly known as the Guangzhou Worker Amateur University)

with a diploma in accounting in July 2001.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Cheng Hoo (BB %4), aged 51, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on |0 November 2011 to serve our Company on a part-time basis. Mr.
Cheng obtained a bachelor of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987.
He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England and Wales in 1995.
Mr. Cheng has over 22 years' experience in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and
partner of CWL Partners in association with Nixon Peabody LLP and Hylands Law
Firm where he practises corporate and commercial law. Currently, he is not acting as a

company secretary of any listed companies other than our Company.

Mr. Ho Chi Keung (I3 % 4), aged 41, is currently the head of corporate services
of the Group. He joined the Group as the Intemal Control and Corporate Governance
Manager between March 2012 and March 2013. Mr. Ho has over |5 years of solid
financial and internal auditing experience with several US Fortune 500 multinationals,
Hong Kong listed financial institutions in the commercial retail banking, general and life
insurance, and the local governmental and non-profit making organizations in the public
entertainment and transportation within the territories. He had also been the Company
Secretary cum Internal Audit Manager for a well-established Hong Kong listed corporation
in the property development and investment, manufacturing and trading of plastics bags,

stock broking and finance, and investment in securities.

Mr. Ho graduated form Hong Kong Polytechnic Universtiy with a Bachelor's degree in
Accountancy. He is also a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B S

_E
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASR HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASR Holdings Limited (the
“Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on pages 50 to 157,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2| March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

As at 3| December 2012
R2EF1A3IA

2012 201 |
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Pyt TER TAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 5 8,108 7457
Goodwil BE 6 557 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 8 — 7,207
Long-term deposits RiigRe [ 352 1,006
Deferred income tax assets ERERIBEEE 9 923 810
9,940 16,480
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B H RN 0R 10 103,829 71,600
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRE - &E KEMEKE [ 10,295 10,923
Other current assets HirnEE 2910 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A EEFT ABRNEHMEE 8 — 1,027
Pledged deposits BEEAER 12 24,885 21,022
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEEY 12 192,935 93,560
334,854 198,132
Total assets HEE 344,794 214612
EQUITY B
Share capital R 3 4,000 100
Reserves (G 14 235,640 112,829
239,640 112929
Non-controlling interests IR 1,641 2,908
Total equity mER 241,281 115837
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

As at 31 December 2012
R2012% 12 A31A

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiasE THER TAT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities *nRBaE
Finance lease liabilities MEREERE 17 7 14
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFEHEaR 9 1,362 448
1,369 462
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables BHREMNIE 5 68,222 60,556
Other payables and accruals Hth e 308 R et B R 16 20,065 17,029
Finance lease liabilities MERESE |7 7 6
Current income tax payable EHMEHARE 13,850 20,722
102,144 98313
Total liabilities BaE 103,513 98,775
Total equity and liabilities BREZRAE 344,794 214612
Net current assets RBEEFE 232,710 99,819
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERGRBDEE 242,650 116,299
The notes on pages 58 to |57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F58FE |57 AN FRAZEHREMBRKOAE
statements. RS o

The financial statements on pages 50 to 157 were approved for issue by the board of ~ H50% |57 MBI BHKRER 201353 421 A

Directors on 2| March 2013 and were signed on its behalf REFSRETE  THUTREREE -
Director Director
2 3
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BALANCE SHEET
EERER

As at 3| December 2012
R2EF1A3IA

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiasE THER FHT
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KB RRIMIRE 7 125,339 125,339
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables FRRTFRIE I H A FE YK IE 1 77,008 54384
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHeEEY 12 24,868 —
Current assets RBEE 101,876 54384
Total assets WEE 227,215 179,723
EQUITY Bz
Share capital PR 13 4,000 100
Reserves E1 14 222,956 162,829
Total equity mER 226,956 162,929
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities nEBEE
Other payables and accruals HihERRIE R E A 16 259 16,794
Total liabilities BaE 259 16,794
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 227215 179,723
Net current assets RBEEFE 101,617 37,590
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 226,956 162,929

F58E |57 BN A S M RK 00 AR

o

The notes on pages 58 to |57 are an integral part of these financial statements.

SR

These financial statements on pages 50 to |57 were approved for issue by the board of FSOE 157 BEMHBERECDR2013F3A21 A
HEFSHATIR  THATARRE -

Directors on 21 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf.

Director Director

ES ES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZERER

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZ0RFNA3INBILEE

2012 201 |
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt % TERr THET
Revenue W 18 674,197 603,736
Cost of sales HEMAK 20 (489,298) (418,158)
Gross profit EF 184,899 185,578
Other (losses)/gains, net Hin(E8), W - F8 19 (855) 2921
Other income HtA 19 250 288
Administrative expenses THRAX 20 (77,856) (71,048)
Operating profit K-yl 106,438 117,739
Finance income BMEKA 23 504 300
Finance costs BB 23 3) (148)
Finance income, net RMEKRNFE 23 501 152
Profit before income tax RSB A& A 106,939 117,891
Income tax expense PrSHiR X 24 (16,863) (18,770)
Profit for the year E R 90,076 99,121
Other comprehensive income: HiRa WA
Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets AHEEEREEAALBERSD — (88)
Recycling of revaluation reserve upon disposal ~ IE A HES R EER
of available-for-sale financial assets BihREEER (34) 19
Currency translation differences i 643 581
Total comprehensive income for the year FRGERALRE 90,685 99,633
Profit attributable to: AT R IARERN
— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEA 89,943 97,305
— Non-controlling interests — MRS 133 1,816
90,076 99,121
Total comprehensive income attributable to: A TN SIBELGAEBA LR
— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEA 90,552 97817
— Non-controlling interests — R 133 1,816
90,685 99,633
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZERER

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZ00RFR2A3IBIEE

2012 201 |
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pyt TER FHET
Eamings per share for profit attributable to ARRIER A ARERNE
equity holders of the Company (HK cents) BRREF CBAL)
_ Basic ~EXK 26(3) N7 044
~ Diluted -8 26(b) 2272 3244
The notes on pages 58 to |57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F58F 157 EMM T AZEREMBRRNA
statements. AE S o
2012 2011
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P EE TERT FET
Dividends [35) 27 27,200 127,736
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREREER

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZ0RFNA3INBILEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRARBRAARS

Available

forsale  Share

financial ~ -based

assets  payment
Statutory revaluation  reserve Non-
andlegl reserve WA
resenves AHEHE  RER
apial premium  resee reseves AR SMEE  MAR Sbtoul  eming  Toul  FER  eqiy
R RHEE E4RF EXRR AiRE EMRE  ORE 0T RERN &% BR 48R
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TRr TEr TEn TRn TER TEr TEn TEn TER TEr TEn  TEn

controlling

Share  Share  Capital  Exchange Retained interests Total

Balance at | January 2012 120041 B1B&# 100 = 6lel g6 103 M — 904 103905 1299 2908 115837
Comprehensive income BRRA
Profi for the year EREH - - = = = = = - M N 133 90076
Other comprehensive income HfpalA
Currency transiton diferences EAEE = = - = = - W - W -
Recycling of revaluation reserve HETRILE

upon disposal of avaiablefor- SREER

sale fnancia assets BlhRREER - - - - - (34 - (34 B il B (4
Total comprehensive income RalALE - - = 643 - (34 - 609 89943 9055 133 90685
Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Dividends ke - - - = - - - = (40400)  (40400) (1.400)  (41,800)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETRR - - - = 616 - - 616 (616) - - -
Allotment of shares RER( 1000 92,000 = - - - = 93000 = 93000 = 93000
Capitalisation issue EALET 2900 (2900 = = = = = = = = = =
Share issuance cost BiRiAmA — (1653 - - - - = (1653%) = (1653)) = (1653
Share-based payment R RERMAR - - - - - - 9 9 - 9 - %
Total transactions vith owners BEEANR 7 A% 3900 72565 = —  le = % TIITS 01 36159 (1400) 34759

Balance at 31 December 2012

RNNENA3 LA

4000 72565 elel 2269 [719 - 9% 86808 152832 239640  ledl 418l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREREHR

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZ00RFR2A3IBIEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
UG St I

Avallable
for-sale Share
financial ~ -based

assets  payment

Statutory revalustion  resenve Non-
andlegl  resene  HRE controling
Sae  Shre  Captd Behange  resenes AEREE  BER Retained interests Total

apidl premm  resene  reenes  AER SEAE  HNH St emng  To  FER  eqy
RA RVEE AARE EiRG oABR EREE  ORE  Ov RERM 4% #R MR
HKF000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Thn TR THEr TR TR TR TEr TR TR TR TR T

Bdance at | fanuary 2011 1201151 A1 B&# - — 1M 31 103 — 795 1079 LS8 109 116876
Comprehensive income BRRA
Profi for the year EREH - = = = - 9305 1816
Other comprehensive income LU RN
Currency transiton diferences EAEE - = = - 3 = =
Recycling of revaluation reserve hETHHESR

upon disposal of avaiablefor- EERERRER

sale financial asets - - - - - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19
Revaluation of avaiable-for- THEESREEER

sale financiel assets - - - - - (88) - (88) - (88) - (88)
Total comprehensive income el LE - - - 5 - ® — S 9IS 9T 1816 B
Transactions with owners RHEANRS
Capitalcontribution il - - \ = = = = \ = \ = \
Disposal ofsubsidaries HEREAR - -y - - - - 0 - ) 68 (13
Transfer to statutory reserve BREEERR - - - - 786 - - 786 (786) - - -
Dividends K& - - - - - - - = (100536) (100536) = (10053)
Allotment of shares RER( 100 - (100) - - - - - - - - -
Total transactons with owners EERANR SR 100 - - % - — % (0132) (100735 6 (0067
Balance at 31 December 2011 12011512831 BESH 100 = 6l 1626 1103 3 = 904 103905 11299 2908 15837

The notes on pages 58 to 157 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 8ZE |57 BN AZS R B HRENA

£5
statements. ﬁx %B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERIMER

For the year ended 3| December 2012
BZ0RFNA3INBILEE

2012 201 |
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ik F#7 FET
Operating activities: ReEs .
Cash generated from operations RETHMFERE 28 (a) 80,225 103,851
Income tax paid ERFET (22,510) (17,207)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMFEREFHE 57,715 86,644
Investing activities: REED :
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEHBAR - MERFAERE 31 431 —
Dividend received B E 26 194
Interest received RGNS 515 300
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERRE (2,890) (5,095)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HENE  BEREE
and equipment P15 B 28 (b) 58 600
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets FEUHRIECRHEE — (1,560)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAHLESMERE
financial assets KPS AR 7,181 ,525
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAREF ABGEREE
at fair value through profit or loss HIFT1S 3R 1,027 —
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & BB 2 R RO PSR 28 (d) = 414
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBME/(FA)
investing activities Bess 6,348 (3.622)
Financing activities: METE
Repayments of bank borrowings EBRITER — (15916)
Repayment of obligations under finance lease BERMEHERE (6) 4)
Capital contribution iE 76,465 |
Interest paid REPEE) (3) (148)
Dividend paid RERLE) (41,800) (100,536)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBME/(FR)
financing activities Re¥s 34,656 (116,603)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BHERBELEYE M, (FD) 98,719 (33,581)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ F#13R & KIREZEY 93,560 125917
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RekBReFEMEL & 656 1224
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRRERREEEY 12 192,935 93,560

The notes on pages 58 to |57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

8E IS7T ENMERZLFHANBRRNOA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

58

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

ASR Holdings Limited (the “Company") was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 June 201 | as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, Queensgate House, |13 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY [-1002 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group") are principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in the

wholesale market.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation, which was completed on 3 December 201 | (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group. Prior to the completion of the Reorganisation, the
business of the Group was carried out by companies now comprising the Group
collectively controlled by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, (together, the “Controlling Shareholders"), who have been
the ultimate beneficiary owners of the Group before and after the completion of

the Reorganisation.

On 30 December 201 |, the Company issued a prospectus (the “Prospectus”)
and launched a public offering of 100,000,000 shares offered at an offer price of
HK$0.93 per share (theOffer Price”) and the capitalisation of 290,000,000 shares
(“Capitalisation Issue™). The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 January 2012.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$) unless

otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of Directors
on 2| March 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

22

Basis of presentation

The Reorganisation was accounted for as a reorganisation of business under
common control using the principle of merger accounting as presented
in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combination” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA™). Accordingly. the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared as if the group structure had been in

existence as at all dates during the years presented.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS").
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which

are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

TESHBRMEE)
22 REREEE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2
2.2 Basis of preparation (Contd)
(i)  Amendments to existing standards effective in 2012 but have no (i)
significant impacts or are not relevant to the Group
. HKAS 12 Amendment  “Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets”
. HKFRS | Amendment  “Servere Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters”
. HKFRS 7 Amendment ~ “Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets”
(i)  New standards, amendments to existing standards and (ii)

interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the

financial year beginning | January 2012 and have not been early

adopted by the Group

R2012 EEMBUEEAE

ERHALEFERNERE

BIfEET %

. BEGH [EL
LRE  FIE:
1255 UEIEHE
HE: BE|

- BREMHB [BRERM
REE BEYEK

B MmEXx

e RREM

HE BREE B
]

- BENK [BE
KE  E@
ERE SR
THRE  BE)
HEN

EEMER2012FIAIH
BB EEHAENE
REB AR ERA AT
ERIRBEEHEARZBYE
HES

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

INANTISE A

B 46 H F 2 HfE] 2K
HKAS | Amendment Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income | July 2012
BRSRTEAF IRIEFTA Hitsr A AR B 2R 20126741 H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits | January 2013
BRI ERFE 9% (2011F) EERF 2013F I A1H
HKAS 27 (201 1) Separate Financial Statements | January 2013
BEEERNSR (011F) BUMBERE 2013F /1R
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures | January 2013
BRGEFLH (20115F) RBEARLAELENRE 2013F I A1H
HKAS 32 Amendment Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities | January 2014
BB SR ERIFEIREFTA RHTMEERGRRAE 20141 A1 H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

22 Basis of preparation (Cont d)

(i)

New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning | January 2012 and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Contd)

B I E R EE

TESHBRUES)
22 REREE(E)
(i) EFEMER2002FIAIH
BRE R B E 1o K £ R A
AR BRI F AT

BRARABEARZBIE
HESE)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

ININTISE DAL

R A R HR A
HKFRS | Amendment Government loans | January 2013
BRMBHREENE IRETEA  BFER 01351 AR
HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets | January 2013

and Financial Liabilities

BEAMBRELENETTETE RE-BHSREERCHARE 013%1 /1R
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments | January 2015
BRMBHRELAFEIR TRMIA 201551 AR
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements | January 2013
BBIBHELERZE 1057 raiB®RE 01351 AR
HKFRS |1 Joint Arrangements | January 2013
BRIBHRELENE 157 BazH 01351 AR
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities | January 2013
BBIBHELERE 1257 REMEBNESRE 01351 AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEEHSESZ)
22 Basis of preparation (Cont d) 22 REEEE)

(i) New standards, amendments to existing standards and (i) EFEMER2002FIAIH
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the BB E [ R EH A
financial year beginning | January 2012 and have not been early FEE Y FEEZIRAH AT
adopted by the Group (Contd) ERARBEEEARZENE

HESE)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

ININTISE DAL

B iR 0 5 B AR 3R
HKFRS 10, HKFRS || and Consolidated Financial Statements, | January 2013
HKFRS 12 Amendment Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
BAMBHEENF 05 - BE SEMBREK  AETHNEENEMHER 01351 A8
IERELERNF | R RES MR - BRHES
ISR ELERE 1 5FERT A
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities | January 2014
(201'1) Amendment
BRI REEAE 05 - KEER 201451 A18

BBUREERIE 28R R
B ErERF275%
(20114F) {BRTAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

22 Basis of preparation (Cont d)

(i)

New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning | January 2012 and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Contd)

B I E R EE

TESHBRMEE)
22 RBEBEE)

(i) EFEMER2002FIAIH
BRE R B E 1o K £ R A
AR BRI F AT
EARBEEEARZENE
JE(E)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

ININTISE DAL

R A R HR A
HKFRS I3 Fair Value Measurements | January 2013
BBMFRELENE 1357 NAEERE 013F I A1H
HK (IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine | January 2013
B (ERMBHRE2E BB K PR 5 A EE P B SR B AR 2013F I A1H

Z8¢€) —REFR

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2009-201 | Cycle | January 2013
FEMERR 2009 2201 | FIBHF ERUE 201351 AR

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards,
amendments to existing standards and interpretation while the
directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS [0 will not have a
significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
The Group will apply these new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation when they are effective in the respective

annual periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME
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64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

23

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all its subsidiaries as at 3| December.

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The Group also
assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by

virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3  Consolidation (Contd)

(i) Subsidiaries (Contd)

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of account for
business combinations, except for the business combination
under common control or the Reorganisation as described
in the note 29 which are accounted for using the principles
of merger accounting. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interests in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the recognised

amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

23

Consolidation (Cont d)

()

Subsidiaries (Contd)

@

Business combinations (Cont d)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such

remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3  Consolidation (Contd)

(i) Subsidiaries (Contd)

@

®)

Business combinations (Cont d)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference

is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change

of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS & R RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3  Consolidation (Contd)

()

(i)

Subsidiaries (Contd)

©

Disposal of subsidlaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.

Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results

of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

23

24

Consolidation (Cont d)
(i) Separate financial statements (Cont d)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is

the Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains, net”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5  Foreign currency translation (Contd)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Cont d)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified

as available-for-sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont d)
(i) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

J income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive

income are translated at average exchange rates; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEEHSESZ)
2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont d) 25 MNERE(E)
(iv)  Disposal of forejgn operation and partial disposal (v) HEESIEBRFSHE
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the HEBIRBENEHERE

Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to profit or loss during the years in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The annual

rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other (losses)/gains,

net”, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEERHEEHMEE)
2.7 Intangible asset 27 EBREE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Company's interest in net fair value of

the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for intemal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment

is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.8

29

Impairment of non-financial assets and investment in a subsidiary

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale. The classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7

2

TEENRRBE L)

2.8

2.9

FERMEERRHBARANRERE

ERFHIEENEETTHHE -
ESFETRENR - BEBEH
AEREHBTREEL AR
| BleHATHHENEEFLR
{Efes - BEREER HE A KE
SEOHE  BASREBR -7
KEeBREEAABERHENK
REFREERENRSE et
fEREME @ BERADHBANR
eRECREELEM) ENRER
RN - fIFEBEE(BBRIN)
HERE - AlgR & B|E BRaH
ERGA TR -

THEE

291 ##E

i
A
JEE)
==
k>
=

BEDRUT
Bl BRaEBEFAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29  Financial assets (Contd)

2.9.1 Classification (Contd)

(0

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within

[2 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than |2 months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are classified as trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, pledge deposits and, cash and cash

equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

/8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29

Financial assets (Cont d)

2.9.1 Classification (Contd)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within |2

months of the balance sheet date.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEEHSESR)
29  Financial assets (Contd) 29 SREEE)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Contd) 292 BREREE)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
(losses)/gains, net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in available-for-sale
financial assets revaluation reserve are included in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as “other (losses)/gains, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of ‘other (losses)/gains, net. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of “other

income” when the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29  Financial assets (Contd)
2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets
(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEEHSESZ)
29  Financial assets (Contd) 29 SREEAE)
2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d) 293 £HEEHEE)
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont d) () HEEAEARYEE
(&)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is AEERREERE
objective evidence of an impairment loss include: FEREEETEHE
BT :
. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; O BIAREH
ABLEBRER
BRI
0 A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in O BREHN B
interest or principal payments; e H s HE R
BEME IR
4
. The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the O AEEERE
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower f& KA B B K
a concession that the lender would not otherwise ERHEmK
consider; B YHEER
© A RA
REMRA—
RTEZREH
EEAE ST
. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter O NI
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; WERETH
B EA
. The disappearance of an active market for that financial O BB B
asset because of financial difficulties; or mMEZeRE
EfEREDS
RERE &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29  Financial assets (Contd)
2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)

J Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

() adverse changes in the payment status of

borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of

impairment exists.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29  Financial assets (Contd)

2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(0

Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of

an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29

Financial assets (Cont d)
2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidenced that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity

instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less, net of pledged deposits.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown

in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.13

2.14

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to

which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Contd)

(i)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Contd)

(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

()

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant group companies. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The Group has no

further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

2

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet

date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to

the fair value of the options granted:

() including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's

share price);

(i) excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

(i) including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the

requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between

service commencement period and grant date.
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92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18

2.19

Share-based payments (Contd)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Contd)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

from provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

Revenue is shown, net of retumns, rebates and discounts and is recognised as

follows:

(a)  Air frejght service fee income

()

©

Air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight
services are provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the
departure date. This service fee income will be either recognised at
gross or net depending on the arrangement with airlines, integrated

carriers and freight forwarders.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables

are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

221

222

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property,
plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the

leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current or non-current liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders of the entities is recognised as a liability
in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Directors.
The Directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as

policies covering specific areas.

(a)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
("RMB") and United States dollar (“US dollar”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,

recognised assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group had not hedged its foreign
exchange risk because the exposure, after netting off the
assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not very

significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 HEEBERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd) 3.1 BBEREEE)
(a)  Market risk (Contd) @) HHEE(E)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Contd) () HEmEEE)

As at 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$19,000 (201 I: HK$67,000) lower/higher
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB-denominated trade and other receivables, cash and

cash equivalents and trade and other payables.

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (i)

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for cash and bank balances as disclosed in Note 12, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7

R2012F12A318
AR LA THE
/B E5% T A
Hm@ggnrg .
Bl Ak A5 B A&
MR DB mA
19,0007 7L(2011 5 :
6700087T)  F B/
REBEEUARKSIE
)8 7 B E fth B U 5K
B -RekReER
MIA KRB 5 K E A JE
NHEMSIBERE
B/ W -

HEREFF B

AN S B R B R
Rz RE kB S
ZEDN LEEX
AEREE AKE
HEARBERER
ERMENKTHH

EZHAVE -



3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont d)

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits and financial instruments
placed with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed

transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only independent parties with high

credit rating are accepted.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The existing
debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group's historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that

adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, deposits and financial instruments placed with banks and
financial institutions represent the Group's maximum exposure to

credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Management makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
those receivables and deposits, and is of the opinion that adequate

provision for receivables with significant credit risk has been made.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 HEEBERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont d) 3.1 BBEREEE)
(¢c)  Liquidity risk () RBELEE
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining sufficient REBFBERTHNKE
cash and cash equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash RefenEnHe ke
flow and adequate banking facilities. As at 31 December 2012, trade EEMARRHNBITHE
and other payables had contractual maturity within twelve months ZHIRENE 2R o 12012
from the balance sheet date. Obligations under a finance lease due FNRAJNB - BHREAM
after 12 months are not significant. ENRENSNIHAER
HEEREFT-EAA-
T EARIBNRERE
BERYAERX -
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant TREIRBEHAEERES
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance HEBMBRNFSREARE
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed HEIHENNeRAEN
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances Ao TREBNEBEARS
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of KIEURBRENE - HRES
discounting is not significant. BOYZELTEXN T
ARZBMOERINERE
R
At 3| December 2012
R2012% 128318
Less than Between Between
| year | to2years 2tob5 years Total
k30 | E2fF 2E56 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET  FER TR TER
Trade payables BHEMNTE 68,222 — — 68,222
Other payables and accruals E At 11 5018 R ezt B 19,193 — — 19,193
Finance lease liabilities BMEMERE 7 7 — 14
87,422 7 — 87,429
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 HEEBERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd) 3.1 BBEREEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Contd) () nBELEEE)

At 31 December 201 |
7201 14F 12831 B

Less than Between Between
| year | to2years  2to 5 years Total
| A | 22 2555 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR THT T

Trade payables BHRNRIE 60,556 — — 60,556

Other payables and accruals E At fE{S 508 K fE &+ & F 16224 — — 16,224

Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 8 16 — 24

76,788 16 — 76,804

3.2 Fair value estimation 32 DABEMR

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables are FRR VBl (B4 1 B B W 008 2 e
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities FEEEENREELALEBER
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual f o ERBERENERBRANE
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group ENAREERFEUSRIAS
for similar financial instruments. BHSHEERRARENRERE

fEET R o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Contd)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by

valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level ).

0 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

0 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7

3

HHERRER(E)

32

DMRBEMET(E)

TREBEEIMRARBEAR
MEemITAE - TRAKANTEER
T

e HREEXAGBHEEMD
BRRERERAE)(F—
&) e

o  FHEREMER)KEZRED
REER)BEIEERSE
—BRABENEELAEN
BARE(ZZR)

o WHEREABEMSHEN
BELRRENHAZEE
TABREGARE)(F=
&) e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 HEEBERE)
3.2 Fair value estimation (Contd) 32 DABEMS(E)
Level | Level 2 Total
— & =& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FTERT TERT
As at 3| December 2012 ®20128F 12831 B
Assets B
Available-for-sale financial assets f] it 1 & & Bl & &
— Investment funds, unlisted —FEMEEES - - —
— Corporate bond, listed — ERE RS — — —
Financial assets at fairvalue  RAABERF ABR
through profit or loss NemEE
— Equity linked note —REEBRE — — —
Total FaE — — —
As at 31 December 201 | R2011E128318
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets A {it 1 & & i & B
— Investment funds, unlisted ~ —JELTIREES o 6,374 6,374
— Corporate bond, listed —LHRERESF 833 — 833
Financial assets at fair value RARBENAER
through profit or loss HEemEE
— Equity linked note -REHHEE — 1,027 1,027
Total fmEt 833 7401 8,234
Annual Report £ 3 2012 > 1 01
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.3  Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, or

sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total liabilities-to-total assets
ratio. The total liabilities-to-total assets ratio as at 31 December 2012 and

2011 were as follows:

3

BERRER(E)
33 BEAERER
REBNESERBEZEERER

-
SERRELE  URRRREMRD
B AEGEREE AR -
Fli R RENE R EBIUREE

RESSABENERE - AEEA
BEEEEBIRMN TRRNKE - Mk
REFWER - HHEEENRD
&

AEERRABRHHBEENLE
EEAAR - R2012F R2011F12
A3IB BEAEHBEENLX
IR

2012 201 |
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Total liabilities HEE 103,513 98,775
Total assets BEE 344,794 214612
Ratio b= 30% 46%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgement to

select specific accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.
(@)  Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are applied
to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectable. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the year in which such estimates have been

changed.
(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would impact the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.
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B AR
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP 5 ¥E BERRE-FEE
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HERE GBAREE BORE BB RE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TR TET TET TET
At | January 201 | R20IIEIAIAB
Cost AR 922 358 565 1307 4240 7392
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (591) (184) (352) O17) (916) (2,960)
Net book amount PREF(E 33 174 213 390 3324 4432
Year ended 3| December 2011 EZ 2011 F
12A318
ILFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 331 174 213 390 3,324 4432
Additions NE 1,268 254 399 626 2,548 5,095
Disposals (Note 28 (b)) HE (HiFE28(b)) — — — — (506) (506)
Exchange difference P ] — — 5 (1 2 6
Depreciation k= (322) 79 (I (195) (863) (1,570)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 1277 349 506 820 4,505 7457
At 31 December 201 | 2011 F
124318
Cost A 2,190 612 973 1926 6013 11,714
Accumulated depreciation e (913) (263) (467) (1,106) (1,508) (4,257)
Net book amount BREFE 1277 349 506 820 4,505 7457

104
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

5 ¥E BERRBE-FEE(E)

Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HERE BUREE BORE BERE AE @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TEx TER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2012 EZE20125
RA3IBLEEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 1,277 349 506 820 4,505 7,457
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBE R B A 7] — — = 64 — 64
Additions B 278 33 186 1,755 638 2,890
Disposals (Note 28 (b)) HE (FfE28(0)) — — (1) 0) (95) (100)
Exchange difference N ZH — = 3 2 7 12
Depreciation e (461) (104) (142) (437) (1,071 (2,215)
Closing net book amount FERREFE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108
At 31 December 2012 20126 12A318
Cost [BEN 2,468 645 1,158 3,732 6,437 14,440
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiE (1,374) (367) (606) (1,532) (2,453) (6,332)
Net book amount BREFE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108

All depreciation expenses during the year have been charged in administrative

expenses.

The Group leases an office equipment under non-cancellable finance lease

agreement. The lease term is two years.

FRANTERI DA BITRAX °

AEEREIIREREHEREEE
Mok HEFHR-F-
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Contd)

An office equipment includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee

under finance lease:

¥ BERRE-TKE(E)
MARBEAENAKERSBEREAHE
AREBMT :

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Cost - capitalised finance lease RAE—ERLREHRE 26 25
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE 9) (4)
Net book amount FREHE 17 21
GOODWILL - GROUP BE-ARE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Cost A 557 —
Accumulated impairment loss RETREEE - —
Net book amount RREVFE 557

Based on the impairment test of goodwill, no impairment against the Group's

goodwill as at 31 December 2012 (201 |: Nil) was considered necessary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR
INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY 7 RHERAARE-F2F
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Unlisted investment, at cost FLEmRE (FEKA) 125,339 125,339
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEARFEOT
Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations B3 Interest held
e AR L 4 FRRBRERLE ERTRARE BRED
2012 2011
Directly held:
EERE:
ASR Champion Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Investment holding US$! 100% 100%
RBRAES RARR EI
([(RBRLES] )
Indirectly held:
BEES
ASR Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
B HEZR 20000007
AOE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
HWrEERRRA B0 in Hong Kong 3,000,000 7T
BRAEENRHER
ASR Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
BAEMRERAR B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BREENRMER
ASR Infrastructure Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100% 100%
50 ETEEX 10,0007 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd) 7 REBARRE-EQR(E)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) MEARFENT @ (&)
Particulars
of registered
Principal capital/issued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl v. Y Interest held
## AR ER 32 40 56 FERBRERME ERTRAFHR BEER
2012 2011
ASR Europe Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 60% 60%
B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T

BRATENRHRER

ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 60% 60%
£ in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BATENRHER

ASRCO Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
AR ER LA 0 in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T

BEEENRMER

Star Pac Logistics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Alir freight solution provider RM2 100% 100%
HREE in Hong Kong S8

BRATENRHRER

Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
ATEEBMRERAR] B0 in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T

BATENRHER

Pacific Empire Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
(formerly known as “Starlite B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
Express International Limited”) ERTERRMER

BANRBRAR (FI7E 2B
ARBEERAR])

AQE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited (note (2)) People’s Republic Air freight solution provider RMB7,500,000 100% 100%
BFEREERE(RI) of China (“PRC") inthe PRC AR 7500000 7T
BRAE(ME @) PEARKME RE=ENRAER
(TR e )
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

RMBARRE -ARR(#F)
WEARFEDT : (&)

Particulars
of registered
Principal capital/issued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl v. Y Interest held
## AR ER 32 40 56 FERBRERME ERTRAFHR BEER
2012 2011
Pacific Empire Intemational People’s Republic Alir freight solution provider RMB6,500,000 100% 100%
Limited (Shenzhen) (note (a)) of China ("PRC") in the PRC AR 6,5000007T
BABRSECE(RY) hEARKME REEENRAER
BRDF(ME @) (TR )
Bluestream Aviation Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong | 7T
BEEENRHER
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
i in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BRATENRHRER
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
£ in Hong Kong 10,000 % 7T
BATENRHER
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
A in Hong Kong 10,000/87C
BETEIRHERER
Pacific Empire Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong 107 7T
BRATENRHRER
Pacific Empire International Limited Macau Air freight solution provider MOP100,000 100% 100%
AFEFEERAERAR R in Macau 100,000 27T

BFEERRUER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd) 7 REBARRE-EQR(E)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Contd) MEBARFEEDT @ (&)
Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capital/issued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
EmBRR/ Interest held
e A L 4 TERBRERLE BERTREFHE BRER
2012 2011
Star Cargo (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Air freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
REBATFEMMRBERRA hiE in Taiwan 34 5,000,000 7T

é\/g?LEnJ &

Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited Thailand Inactive BAHT3,000,000 100% 100%
% TEEX 3,000,000 %k
Star Cargo Japan Limited Japan Air freight solution provider JPY350,000 100% 100%
Star Cargo R\ &4t BA in Japan 350,000 A
AARZERRHUER
Precise China Investments Limited British Virgin Investment holding US$2 — 100%
(note (b)) Islands (“BVI") RERR EY
(M) RBRIES
(IRBRXES])
Pacific Empire International Limited British Virgin Investment holding US$2 - 100%
(note (b)) Islands (“BVI") REER 2ETT
(& (b)) RBRUES
(IEBRELEE])
Pacific Well (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% -
B (EE)BRAT B in Hong Kong 100,000 % 7T
BEZEIRHEERD
Oriental Way (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% -
RE(ER)ERAR 30 in Hong Kong 100,000/ 7T
BATENRHER
ASR GSA Limited (note (c)) Hong Kong Inactive HK$ 1,000,000 100% -
(M (o) &b TEEX 1,000,0007%7T
Notes: BisE -
(@)  These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies incorporated in PRC. @ ZEKBARATBEEMAZAER
BEAA -
(b)  These subsidiaries ware deregistered during the year. b) ZEMBATSRERIUEEM -
() This subsidiary was incorporated during the year. © ZHBATBREREMRK o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS — GROUP 8. HtteMEE-A&H
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Available-for-sale financial assets (note (a)) AftHEeHEE (@) — 7,207
Current assets MENEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss &A1 BB AB&A
(note (b)) eREE (b)) — 1,027
Notes: (T
(@)  Available-for-sale financial assets (@ FHHELREE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
At | January RIAIR 7,207 7,257
Additions NE — 1,560
Redemptions EEl (7,181) (1522)
Net losses transfer to equity R ERNEREE — (88)
Available-for-sale financial asset revaluation At HE SR EEEMFHE
reserves released on disposal N k=iE el (34) —
Net gain recognised in profit or loss RiEa TR A E F 5 8 —
At 31 December RI2H31R — 7,207
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AftHESREERENTER
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Unlisted securities FLEmES
— Investment fund —REES — 6,374
Listed securities EmES
— Corporate bond —EES — 833
— 7,207
Market value of listed securities EmESmE — 833

Annual Report £ 3 2012 > 1 1 1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

8

112

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS — GROUP (Conta)

Notes: (Contd)

(@)  Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial assets were denominated in the following currencies:

8

HiteRMEE-F58(%)
Wiz : (%)

@) AbEsEEE (4)

AHHESREENTEEIIE -

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

Tz THET

Hong Kong dollar BIT — 3,075
United States dollar X — 4,132
— 7,207

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (b) RBRALBEFABENEHEE

2012 201

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THT

At | January RIAIR 1,027 1,042
Disposals HE (1,027) —
Net losses charged to profit or loss RIEEMBEE1RF 58 — (15)
At 31 December RI12A318 — 1,027

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the following:

BARBEAABSNEREERR

PAMIER -
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Unlisted securities: FEmESR
Equity linked note —REEMIRE = 1,027

The Directors consider the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are held

for short-term profit making purpose.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were denominated in United States

dollar.

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS — GROUP (Contd)
Notes: (Cont d)

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

8 HtteMEE-AKEE)
Wiz : (&)

b) BRAARBEFABRENESREE

(&
As at 31 December 201 |, the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or K201 1E12R318 » A&EEEAA
loss were pledged to a bank to secure certain loans and overdraft facilities of certain BEFARRNEREEDEATR
subsidiaries. 1 RETHELANETERRE
XRERBER -
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BRABEFABGEHNEREENA
recorded in ‘other (losses)/gains, net' in the consolidated statement of comprehensive RBEZYFAGEEHARGER [H
income (note 19). i (B#R) ks FE] (W

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP

9 BEFAH-AEM

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BEMEHEEREEMBHAGIT
N
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Deferred tax assets: BLEFTSHEE :
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after A 1218 A BAT& U ]
more than 12 months IR IEE = 923 810
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIBEE
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after A 1218 A BAf& U ]
more than 12 months IR IEEE (1,362) (448)
(439) 362
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS & R RE

114

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Contd)

Deferred income taxes of the Group represent temporary differences under the

liability method using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date in the respective jurisdictions. The gross movements in deferred income

tax assets/(liabilities) during the year are as follows:

Withholding

tax relating

EEFREH-F5E(E)

AEENECHEHRIREAEEER
RAAEREEAEOEEMREER
MOREFENERER - BEMEH
BE/(ABRRFANBEDERNT :

to unremitted Accelerated

earnings

tax

BERE depreciation

&R E  Tax losses Total

WERAH BERE  HEER #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TET TER

At | January 201 | R01EIAIR (114) 214) 528 200
Recognised in the consolidated statement ~ EAR S 2 A MR T

of comprehensive income (Note 24) fER (Pitst24) (334) @31 807 162

At 31 December 201 | R201 112 H31 B (448) (525) 1,335 362
Recognised in the consolidated statement  fEAR G Z2EMEKF

of comprehensive income (Note 24) feR (Ptst24) (355) (93) (353) (801)

At 31 December 2012 20125 12A318 (803) (618) 982 (439)

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign

investment enterprises established in Mainland China, in respect of earnings

generated after 31 December 2008. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are

held by companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are subject to 5% withholding

tax.

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Contd)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had not recognised deferred income
tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$8,428,000 (201 I:
HK$2,239,000). Except for tax losses amounting to HK$5,940,000 (201 I:
HK$479,000) that can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against future taxable

income, the Group's remaining tax losses will expire in the following years:

B I E R EE

BERSH -RKE(Z)
R2012F12A31 8 AEBHARHE
318 498,428,000/ 7T (2011 € : 2,239,000
BIL)ERELEMEREE - RIVAEE
#75,940,00078 7T(2011 £ : 479,00078 7T )
AT R B A5 8 PR VR I B R AR IE SR T A
I AEENRTREEEERATEE
R -

Group

KEHE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
2015 60 60
2016 42 42
2017 32 —
2018 1,658 1,658
2019 696 —
2,488 1,760
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% & B 5
10 TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP 10 EZEWRRE-X&H
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Trade receivables B 5 EBGRIE 103,829 71,600
The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; and (i) credit terms of AEENFEETEROEINNR: &

116

30 to 60 days.

As at 3| December 2012 and 3| December 201 |, the carrying amounts of trade

receivables approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date was as follows:

(iN30E 60 BIEEH#ETT -

M2012%F 128318 K201 E128318

B 5 R SR R EEE

4
o

\

+

~AEEE

R2012FI12A3I8 - BRERZHHE
HEE S EKFIBRRR DT

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET

—0to 30 days —0&£30K 65,482 45,871
- 31 to 60 days —31E260K 31,293 16,601
— 61 to 90 days —61 290K 4,735 5,074
— Over 90 days —90KRM E 2,319 4,054
103,829 71,600
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TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Contd)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately HK$4 1,348,000 (201 I:
HK$25,218,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

ESENFIE-KKE (&)
R2012%F 128318 #541,348,000/%
TL(2011 6 : 252180008 L) M E 5 fE
WHEEBBERRE - ERS LKA
VEERCZHNBEYEFPEB 258
SENTERNBRR T :

2012 201 |

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FET

—0to 30 days —0&E30K 32,009 15,446
— 31 to 60 days —31 260K 6,218 4,190
— 61 10 90 days —61E90K 1,656 2,107
— Over 90 days —90KA L 1,465 3475
41,348 25218

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables were denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBE ZRUFANKREEN NIE
I -

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FET

— Hong Kong dollar —BT 66,844 39,315
— Renminbi —AR® 25,550 17,427
— United States dollar — 7T 3,790 9,529
— Macau Patacas — BT 1,852 640
— New Taiwan dollar —#a 2,731 3426
— Japanese Yen =g 2,854 1218
— Other currencies —HtE% 208 45
103,829 71,600

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the fair values

of the trade receivables. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

NEEEERNRAEERRAESE
KRENDAEE - ARELEFEL
(A m i RFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR
Il PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES I BEAHE REREGEKRHR
The nature of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 3|1 December R2NFENAIE BRRE: B8
2012 was as follows: REMERFESEERT -
Group Company
X&HE ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR
Prepayments TERFRIE 2,395 5,607 = 4,384
Deposits ®e 4,234 4,190 — —
Other receivables H b FEYTRIE 4,018 2,132 = =
10,647 11,929 — 4,384
Amount due from a subsidiary (note (b)) FEUWHTBARIFIE (FIFE(D)) — — 77,008 50,000
10,647 11,929 77,008 54,384
Less: non-current portion: deposits R FERNERER S - e (352) (1,006) — —
10,295 10,923 77,008 54,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) Il

Notes:

(@)  Asat 3l December 2012, the carrying amounts of other receivables approximated

their fair values.

(b)  The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Deposits and other receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

B I E R EE

BANRE  RERHEMERREE)
P

@  R2012F128318 A EYGRIER
FHESEERAEERE -

b) ZRAAEEM  LERERERE
o

Be MEMEREIRN M EEIIE

Group Company
BN ARF
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TAT TERT FAT

— Hong Kong dollar — BT 2,273 1,631 77,008 54,384
— Renminbi —AR¥ 4,430 4346 — —
— United States dollar —X7T 1,262 27 = =
— Macau Patacas —RBMT 54 = = =
— Japanese Yen —H 232 240 — —
— Other currencies —Hip G I 78 — —
8,252 6,322 77,008 54,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

12 PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 BEAER HERELEEY
Group Company
N 3| AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TER THRT TR TRT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 192,935 93,560 24,868 =

Pledged cash at bank (note (a)) BEFRITHRE (@) 22,299 19,569 — —

Pledged short-term bank deposits BEREBRITER

(note (a)) (PHEE()) 2,586 1453 — —

Pledged deposits EEMER 24,885 21,022 = =

Total cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEAR 217,820 114,582 24,868 —

Notes: BT

(@)  Asat 3| December 2012 and 201 I, the amounts were pledged to a bank to secure (@  R2012FR2011F12A318 « ZF5X
certain loans facilities of certain subsidiaries and guarantees provided to airline BEARTRIT  FRETHEAR
suppliers (note 33). METEREGEAREETFMELA

HERMEROER (ME33) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 12

Total cash and bank balances were denominated in the following currencies:

B I E R EE

CBEAER HERRSEENE)
Be RBTEREEUTIIERIE :

Group Company
AEH ADR

2012 201 | 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERx FHET THERT FHET
— Hong Kong dollar —BT 122,893 56,742 24,868 —
~ Renminbi —AR% 47,621 30242 — —
— United States dollar — 7T 24212 | 7,086 — —
— New Taiwan dollar —#at 6,058 5,144 — —
— Macau Patacas — R 3,367 1,886 = =
— Japanese Yen —H 4,581 2,796 = =
~ Euro —BUT 9,072 670 — —
— Other currencies —HE% 16 16 — —
217,820 114,582 24,868 —

Cash in bank eamed interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rate.
As at 3| December 2012, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents

approximated their fair values.

As at 3| December 2012, the effective interest rates on pledged short-term
bank deposits were 0.3% (201 |: 0.2%) per annum, and these deposits have an
approximate average maturity of 96 days (201 I: 30 days).

The Group's RMB balances are placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

RTRCRBRBITEXNEZH:t
B RWNRFENANBE BekBEL
ZEYNEREREALBERES -

RNFNAIAE ERFAEHR
TEZHNERFEHNER03%(2011 F :
02%) MZEFRFHHRA
(2011 : 30H)AEIE -

AEEMAREESRTF RSB AR
T ARBELFATERIBER - Hh
CBREAARBINENEHLAR
SNEE 78 R BT AR 100 0 S0 761 R A
BOEBRARR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 & B M
I3 SHARE CAPITAL 3. K&

Capital structure of the Company was as follows:

RORMEARENT :

Number of shares Share capital

ROHE IR
2012 201 | 2012 201 |
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BIREBE0IBITH LA
Authorised: ETE
At | January RIAIE 2,000,000,000 — 20,000 —
Incorporation of Company (note a) ~ AARFEMA (HizEa) — 10,000,000 — 100
Additions (note a) RE (MfTa) — 1,990,000,000 — 19,900
At 31 December RI12A31H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: BREEIATHNEETRBRER

Number of shares Share capital

RHHE R

2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$000 HK$'000

THERx TAT
At | January RIAIE 10,000,000 — 100 —
Issue of shares Bl — 10,000,000 — 100

Issue of new shares pursuant BB ARSI TR

to the public offering (note b) (Pi3ED) 100,000,000 — 1,000 =
Capitalisation of shares (note c) B ERME (FifeEc) 290,000,000 — 2,900 —
At 31 December RI2A318 400,000,000 10,000,000 4,000 100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Note:

@

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 201 |.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion of the Reorganisation,
the companies, which now comprising the Group, were collectively controlled by
the ultimate beneficiary equity holders, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung,
Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki.

On 3 December 201 |, the shareholders resolved to increase the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$100,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of an
addition of 1,990,000,000 shares.

On 16 January 2012, the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at an offering price of HK$0.93 each through the public offering for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$93,000,000. These shares rank pari passu in all

respects with the existing shares.

On 6 January 2012, pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 3 December
2011, as a result of the listing of the Company, a total of 290,000,000 shares of
the Company were allotted and issued to the shareholders as at the date of the
resolution on a pro rata basis (“Capitalisation Issue”). The amount of HK$2,900,000

was paid in full against the share premium account of the Company.

B I E R EE

BRA(%#)
Bzt -
@@  ARER20I1F6A28BFMAK o

AR B Rk EA5 - B
BREARARENRE  ARKER
BEAREREE BSERERE
R R RZH -

R201IE12A3A - REZREBIESR
#9M,990,000,0008% Bk £ - #§ AR BIRHY
SATERRZN R 100,00078 7512 220,000,000
AL ©

R2012F 1 R168 » RRAEBAR
B AR B 493,000,000 TR R
0938 TR B & E%17100,000,0000 &
REMBECOI AT LB - ZZRHR
BB A ERRE RN ZA ARER o

R2012E 1 B168  \BER201 112
A3ABEBORMARER - HRAR
AL ARBRNARZERB Bk
il AR R A% R 3174 ££290,000,000
kA ( [EAREEIT] ) - EMR
AARNROEEREHN LN &R
2,900,000/ 7T °
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B AR
|4 RESERVES 14 f#HE
Group K&
Available-
for-sale
financial Share-
assets based
Statutory revaluation  payment
andlegal  reserve reserve
Share  Capital Exchange  reserves AIfEE  DARM Retained
premium  reserve  reserves  EER SMEE AEBM  Subtowl  ening Total
RHRE B4RE EXRE SiRE EURG GRNRE T REEA st
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén TEn TEx TEn TEx TExr TR TEn  TEx
Balance at | January 201 011 A | BRI = 6460 1,045 317 103 = 7925 107922 115847
Currency translation diferences [ 5% 22 - - 58] = = = 58] = 581
Recyciing of revaluation HEMHLESH
reserve upon disposal of BERENRHER
avaiable-for-sale financial assets - - - - 19 - 19 — 19
Revaluation of avaiable-forsale  ATRENE SR
financial assets BEER - - - - (88) - (88) - (88)
Capital contribution TE - \ = = = = | = \
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (200) - - - - (200) = (200)
Allotment of shares gl = (100) = = = = (100) = (100)
Transfer to statutory reserve.~ BEEAERE - - - 786 - - 786 (786) -
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - 97305 97305
Dividends RE - - - - - - —  (100536) (100536)
Balance at 31 December 2011 18201 1512831 EE58A — 6l 626 1103 34 — 894 103905 112829
Currency translation diferences [E % Z 28 - - 643 - - - 643 — 643
Recycling of revaluation reserve
upon disposal of HEMHLESH
avallable-for-sale financial assets B EE(E Bt R - = - = (34) a (34 - (34
Dividends Ra - - - — - - —  (40400)  (40,400)
Issue of new shares
pursuant to public offering  RELFE ERITHMR 92,000 - - - - — 92,000 — 92,000
Capitalisation of shares RAEAL (2,900) = = = = — (2900 —  (2900)
Share issuance cost BIROAA (16,535) - — = — — (1653 — (1653
Share-based payment AR BERRIRH - - - - - 94 94 - 94
Transfer to statutory reserve.  ERE AT RIE - - - 616 - = 616 (616) =
Profi for the year ERah - — — - — - — 8 8994
Balance at 31 December 2012 1201212431 A2 72,565 6,161 2,269 1,719 - 94 82808 152832 235640
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 RESERVES (Contd)

@

(b)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve as of 3| December 201 | represented the difference
between the nominal amount of share capital issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of share capital of the subsidiaries transfer to the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation of the Group that took place in

2011.

Statutory and legal reserves

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China are required to make
appropriations to certain statutory reserves namely, statutory reserve fund
and discretionary reserve fund from their statutory profits for the year after
offsetting accumulated losses as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations from prior years and before profit distribution to equity
holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such statutory reserves are
determined according to the relevant regulations in Mainland China at rates
of not less than 10%, or at the discretion of the boards of directors of the
respective companies until the fund aggregates to 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital. The transfer of these reserves must be made before

distribution of dividends to shareholders.

Subsidiary incorporated in Republic of China (“ROC") are required to make
appropriations to a legal reserve. According to the ROC Company Law and
the subsidiary's Articles of Incorporation, any annual earnings, after paying
income tax and offsetting accumulated deficit, if any, shall be appropriated in

the following order:

a |0% thereof as legal reserve;

b.  Any remaining balance should then be appropriated in accordance
with the resolution of the stockholders in their regular annual

meetings; and

B I E R EE

14 fEE)

(2)

&N

R201 1 E 12831 BB ARE
i AARIEBITRAEELR
BAEER0I | FHTHEMR
ARRIEENBRRNBAEE
ZEHEE o

EEREERE

P R B P 3 o 1A AR SZ Y BB A
AABERFRZEEEN (KH
REFE ARG ENBESF
BRI BRRRAEDRREALE
BN IKAT) M5 TEE RS
(BEERFHE RBBERAES)
B - BRZFEERBEIEL
HOBE R L B AR 1B P B A s AR B DA
AR TMER 10% 8 b 3 5y % fil
ARMEFENREET  EEE
LRFEIHB LR ZMERN
50% Lk » ZERMEBARRBRR
RS e -

RAEERE ( [FERE] ) &
AL EF B N Bl A M & AR
B - RiFPERBE R RDE KM
BLRAMEMALER - RN
Rt kEERTEL (0F)
& EEAFERNERATIEF
B

a  EHIwEAELERES

b, REEMBRERBAIRR
HEHBESE RS LHRE
ES:

125

Annual Report £ 2012 >



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

14

126

RESERVES (Contd)

(b)

Statutory and legal reserves (Cont d)

C No more than [% of the dividend declared as bonuses to employees

(payable only upon declaration of dividends).

In addition, in accordance with the ROC Company Law, the aforementioned
appropriation to legal reserve shall be made annually until the reserve
amount equals the subsidiary's capital stock. Legal reserve may be used to
offset deficit, if any, and when the reserve amount exceeds or equals 50% of
the capital stock, an amount up to 50% of such reserve may be transferred

to capital stock.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance
of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary's capital in

accordance with the Macao Commercial Code No. 377.

Share issuance costs

Share issuance costs mainly include underwriting commission, lawyer's fees,
reporting accountant's fee and other related costs. Incremental costs that
were directly attributable to the issue of the new ordinary shares amounting
to HK$ 16,535,000 was treated as a deduction from share premium. Other
share issuance costs which were not directly attributable to the issue of
the new ordinary shares amounting to HK$ 11,700,000 were recognised as

expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.
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REE)

(b)

EEREGERE(E)

« TEBIHWEEERT
BE (ENERKREKE
) fERTEAL

WA - BEBEPERBARE - [
BEBEELN L RBRASE
B EERESBEESENNE
NRAIKIRA » BEREATARE
HEA (E) kinEELER
BYBERBRAE50% + A%
BZRES OB S B SR
Z'Ko

RRRF R RET7E -
AR B R R ARG
& fl&D 5%%Aé£ﬁﬁ-
EZERHAMESRERERAR
#50% A1k °

il
BRL

BITROAAK

BROZETRAXEBERHA
& 2ZME RREHMEAR
HMEAKA - FITHMETRRE
2 FE{G FE AT AN 16,535,000/ TT 1%
RABBRMABAMG - WIE
THERREERANEMRS
BEITRAR B 11,700,000 7T © 2
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14  RESERVES (Contd)

(d)

Share-based payments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

14 fEE)

(d)

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise price of the

granted options is equal to the market price of the shares plus 0.55% on the

date of the grant. Options are conditional on the employee completing two

years' service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting two

years from the grant date. The options have a contractual option term of 3.5

years. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or

settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

MR R B R A9 £ 5K

BRESE TEIENES - /T
REmBRENTEERAKLA
HAR AR T /B HN0.55% ° FE AR E Y
Gt REBERERME (AT
BH) - BRETAKRL AR
MERIBTTE - BRENE S
REEIR A3.56F - AEEWEER
B3k UAIR € 4 B BARE R A TE X
HETET -

T BEARTERSRERE HE
B A R T ¢

2012

Average exercise
price in HK$ Number of
per share share options
option (thousands)

BHRREN
FTREE RkRE
(BB L) 8B (F40)
At | January RIAIA = =
Granted BERE 1.83 7,980
Forfeited 2R — —
Exercised BT — —
Expired EEm — —
At 31 December RI2A318 .83 7,980
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14

128

RESERVES (Contd) 14 fREE)

(d)  Share-based payments (Contd) (d)

Out of the 7,980,000 outstanding options, nil were exercisable.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry

date and exercise prices:

URBBERNNR(E)

2 #7.980,000{7 B F N5 K
AJ{7{E o

FEREARITEBRENER B
RATEEMT :

Exercise prince Number of

in HK$ per share options

Expiry date — 7 June 2016 share option (thousands)
2012

SORREN BRE

TEE 8E(T1)

ERBH-2016F6A7H (X8 at) 2012
2012 — —
2013 — —
2014 — —
2015 — —
2016 1.83 7,980
1.83 7,980

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the period
determined using the Binomial option pricing model was HK$0.36 per
option. The significant inputs into the model were weighted average share
price of HK$1.82 at the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of
39.02%, dividend yield of 5.55%, an expected option life of 3.5 years, and
an annual risk-free interest rate of 0.19%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of continuously compounded share retumns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last year. See Note 21 for the
total expense recognised in the income statement for share options granted

to employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

4  RESERVES (Contd) 14 f&fE(E)

Company
ARF

Share-based

payment

reserve

Share DR% & Retained

premium HEtm earnings Total
ROEE  ARRBE  RERAN #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T

Balances at | January 2012 R2012F 1 A1 BR &R 125,239 — 37,590 162,829
Allotment of shares BoEfxtn 92,000 — — 92,000
Capitalisation issue BRbETT (2,900) — — (2,900
Share issuance cost BITROBR (16,535) — — (16,535)
Dividend e — — (40,400) (40,400)
Employee share option scheme- B TRERE 2

Value of employee services —BIRKER — 94 — 94
Profit for the year F A% A — — 27,868 27,868
Balance at 3| December 2012 2012612 431 BEVAEER 197,804 94 25,058 222,956
Representing: 1

Reserves i 11,058

Proposed dividend BEERE 14,000

25,058
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR
|14  RESERVES (Contd) 14 f&fE(E)
Company
ENG
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
R R 1E REBR #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER T T#T
Balance at | January 201 | R2011E 1A BR&EH — — —
Acquisition of a subsidiary upon REARIE
Reorganisation VNG 125,239 = 125,239
Profit for the year FRm A — 37,590 37,590
Balance at 3| December 201 | 20114 12 A 31 REOASR 125239 37,590 162,829
Representing: 5
Reserves f#E 10,390
Proposed dividend EHEBRE 27,200
37,590
I5 TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP I5 BLEMAFE-XEE
2012 201 |
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Trade payables B HRENFIE 68,222 60,556

130
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TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP (Conta)

As at 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice

date was as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

EZENRE-KER (&)
720129128318 » RIEHZHHEL
WE S ENFIBERRE DT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

—0to 30 days -0&30K 45,688 29,999
— 31 to 60 days 31 260K 13,377 8,714
— 6l to 90 days —61 290K 3,181 5,439
- 91 to 120 days 912 120K 1,889 1913
— Over 120 days —120R A E 4,087 14,491
68,222 60,556

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables were denominated in the

following currencies:

REBEHENFBNRRENTIE
®IIE -

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000

TER THET

— Hong Kong dollar — BT 36,698 22238
— Renminbi —AR% 6,630 2212
— United States dollar —E7T 22,129 32,820
— New Taiwan dollar —Fek 493 806
— Malaysia Ringgit -5 726 976
— Macau Patacas —BMT 985 244
— Japanese Yen —H 141 482
— Euro —ET — 40
— Other currencies —HEMEE 420 738
68,222 60,556

As at 31 December 2012 and 3| December 201 |, the carrying amounts of trade

payables approximated their fair values.

P02 12831 B K201 1124318
BHRNFENRAERE AR EER

\
/

of
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MBERME

16 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS l6 HiEAREREGER
Group Company
KEE RAT
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAL

Accruals B & 15,625 14615 259 —
Deposits received Bliire 4,354 2,376 — —
Other payables H it FEf50IE 86 8 — 3481
20,065 17,009 259 3,481
Amount due to a director (note (b)) R —REEFE (b)) — 20 = =
Amount due to a subsidiary (note (b)) R —RMBARIRIE
GEIO) — — — 13313
At 31 December RI2A31H 20,065 17,029 259 16,794
Notes: FisE -
(@  Asat 3| December 2012, the carrying amounts of other payables and accruals (@ R20012F128318 « HufEMZE
approximated their fair values. BESERNEGEEEA A BEE
5o
(b)  The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. b) ZEFENEER 2ERAKREX
fBi& -
Deposits received, other payables, amount due to a director and amount due to a BliRe  HpENZEREN—4Z
subsidiary were denominated in the following currencies: =N —FHB A FZIE A T S HH)E -
Group Company
A% KA
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER THET

— Hong Kong dollar — /BT 1,635 818 259 16,794
— Renminbi —AR% 2,675 1,563 — —
— United States dollar —357T 79 7 = =
— Macau Patacas —BFIT — — _ _
— Other currencies —HE% 51 26 — —

4,440 2414 259 16,794
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES - GROUP 17 BEEERE-X5H
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets would revert AREHEEEMNENSERORER
to the lessor in the event of defautt. HHEA  HHEEGEER ELREEM -
2012 201 |
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHEAERTE
— minimum lease payments —REHENK
No later than | year —FLR 8 8
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FERFUR 8 16
16 24
Future finance charges ARREER ) 4)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEHERENRE 14 20
The present value of finance lease MEREEERN
liabilities is as follows: WEMT -
No later than | year —F LA 7 6
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FUERFURA 7 14
14 20
SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 18. HERIBER

The Group is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally

engaged in the provision of air freight service in the wholesale market.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive Directors.
The executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating

segments based on these reports.

The executive Directors assess the performance of the business from a

geographical perspective, i.e. by destinations of air freight service.

AEERA—RREERAR - MAKE
AREIENRERMENHREZER
%% o

IREERRACHERRAUTES -4
TEFRAASENAMEAR - UFFE

RTESNE AR (BHRZERBN A
i) SR RR o

Annual Report £ 2012 > 133



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR
18 SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 18. HERIBERE)
The segment information provided to the executive Directors for the reportable BZEWNRENAIBLEFE  HTE
segments for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows: ERA R BERENDHERAT -
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
&M EY) DAHE FEM Azt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TERT TET TR

Sales to external

customers RISMNERE 8 150,701 72,934 372,880 77,682 674,197
Cost of sales HEAR (139,253) (68,618) (217,026) (64,401) (489,298)
Segment results DEEE 7,066 2,664 96,204 8,197 114,131
Unallocated expenses, net R/ Fefi 588 (5:478)
Depreciation e (2,215)
Operating profit Syl 106,438
Finance income, net MERNFEE 501
Profit before income tax B P15 50 Bl A 106,939
Income tax expense PSR (16,863)
Profit for the year F N 90,076
Revenue of approximately HK$673,805,000 and HK$392,000 were derived from TERBEEEMKELANA
air freight and sea freight, respectively. 673,805,000/ 7L % 392,000/87C °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR
SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 18. HERIBERE)
The segment information provided to the executive Directors for the reportable BZEWIFNAINBLEFE  ATE
segments for the year ended 31 December 201 | is as follows: ERA R BERENDHERAT -
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
B el TAME FEM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TET THET TRT

Sales to external

customers MNP HE 141,386 43,725 342,521 76,104 603,736
Cost of sales HEAR (126,409) (39,862) (182,184) (69,703) (418,158)
Segment results DEEE 10,572 2727 113,195 4520 131,014
Unallocated expenses, net R B F 58 (11,705)
Depreciation e (1,570)
Operating profit oyl 117739
Finance income, net MERNFEHE 152
Profit before income tax B P15 550 Bl A 117,891
Income tax expense BiEEiEha (18,770)
Profit for the year FRmA 99,121
Revenue of approximately HK$593,069,000 and HK$10,667,000 were derived TERBEEEMKELANA
from air freight and sea freight, respectively. 593,069,000/ 7T &2 10,667,000/ 7T
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19

136

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET AND OTHER INCOME

Hit(58]) /Wi BEREARA

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Other (losses)/gains, net Hft(F58) a3 B8
Decrease in fair value of financial assets BARBEFABZNSE
at fair value through profit or loss BERABERY - (15)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment HEWE  BER&EEBR),/WE (42) 94
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains B3 (EE) W F 8 (783) 2,663
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries S B A A — 195
Gains/(losses) on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHLESRERE
financial assets Wiz (E518) 8 (16)
Others HAh (38) —
(855) 2921
Other income Hitslt A
Bad debt recovery R 51 —
Dividend income from investment REFENREKA 26 194
Others Hith 173 94
250 288
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

EXPENSES BY NATURE 20 BEHEHINAX
Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are analysed as PIASHE A RATIHF X B9 X 2 1T 10
follows: T :
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Cost of sales HEMA 489,298 418,158
Employee benefit expenses, including EERNAX(BRESHM)
directors’ emoluments (Note 21) (PzE21) 45,790 34,945
Depreciation (Note 5) e (HEEs) 2,215 1,570
Operating lease rentals for buildings BFELHERS 5,356 3991
Auditor's remuneration BRI e 1,739 1,768
Bad debt written-off BRI — 91
Marketing and promotion mEkERRER 6,572 4,807
Professional service expenses EXRBRT 3,134 13,055
Travelling =i 4,483 4357
Communication #a 1,861 | 445
Others Hity 6,706 5019
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses HERARITHRAS 8% 567,154 489,206
Cost of sales recognised as expenses mainly included flight charges from airlines and ERRRXNHERN AT EZREMER

other freight forwarders.

AREEERERNER -
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2|

138

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EERARAX

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Salaries, bonus and other welfares & EAREMER 42,452 32877
Pension - defined contribution plans (note (a)) Rike — BT EI(HEE ) 3,244 2,068
Share-based payments PARRn R EREEI (3K 94 =
45,790 34,945

(@)  Pension - defined contribution plans @) EBAE-TEMHENFE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of
their gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,250 per month to the MPF
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited

contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes covering its full time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC eligible employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC. No forfeited contribution

is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees or retirees other than the

defined contribution payments as disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 22

@

Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of individual director of the Company during the years

which were included in the employee benefit expenses as disclosed in Note

B I E R EE

ESkEREEESFM

@) EZFH

P EE2 | T B B At AR B R A
B S AN A fE Y & == #r B 5 )

2| are set out below: R
Pension-
defined
contribution
plans
Salariesand  Discretionary Bife
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -8 Total
ESfE wE  HEREE RiERA EE/EE | At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR ThR TR
Year ended 31 December 2012 BENNENA3IBLEE
Director EZ
~Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny(Note (i) —RER (M3E0) — 2470 — 14 2484
—Mak Chi Hung Richard (Note (i)) ~ — %58 (FrsE(i) — 1,950 = 14 1,964
~ Law Kai Lo, Niki (Note (i) — B (ki) - 1,950 = 14 1,964
Independent B
Non-executive Director FHITEE
—Weifin Cai =5 360 - - = 360
— Zhang Xianlin —REM 360 — = - 360
~Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony —B#E 40 — — — 40
1,140 6,370 — Y] 7,552
Note (i) Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny was also the chief executive officer of the MiZEG)  F2012%F 1 BIHZE20124F
Company from | January 2012 to 7 December 2012. 12A78 - REREERR
ARRATHARR -
Note (i) Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki were also the chief MizEG) B2012F 128788 @ £E

executive officers of the Company from 7 December 2012 onwards.

HAERBEREERR
ARBHTTBARE, °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 22 EBREHEEEHFME)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Contd) @ EZHFME)

Pension-

defined

contribution

plans

Salariesand  Discretionary Eihe
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -E8 Total
L£3u22 #e  Hekeh W1 e 5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TR TAL TRL TR TAL

Year ended 3| December 201 | BZ011F1R3NEIEE

Director EZ

~Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (Note (i) —RER (i) — 1,850 380 12 224

—Mak Chi Hung, Richard —EEk — 1450 300 12 1,762

— Law Kai Lo, Niki —EEK = 1560 300 12 1872

Incependent BUHHTEEF

Non-executive Director

—Weifin Cai =5 180 - = = 180

— Zhang Xianlin —REM 90 — = - 90

~ Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony —B#E 105 — — — 105
375 4860 980 3 6251

Note (i) Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny was also the chief executive officer of the MizE(i) REREEMBERRARIT

Company. IEECE A
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22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont d)

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees to the Group
and/or in their capacity as directors of the companies comprising the Group

during the year.

No director of the Company waived any emolument during the year (201 I:

nil).

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 3| December 2012, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 directors (201 I: 3
directors), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (201 I: 2) individuals are as follows:

22

B I E R EE

ESREREEEFM(Z)

(a)

ESHM(E)
LERFAIRHFMERNFAZSES
WREERAREERENT 7 R
/IR EERREER TSR
ESNINEARERROFH
B o

RER RABESHEREL
a8 (20114 : &) o

IEBRFMAL
BZE12FNANALFE A%
EhasaaMATBIEEES
(0115 : 3REE) - HEOHH
BRI AHT o gk T2 (2011
F:28) EAZEFBAT -

2012 201 |

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Salary and allowances el 3,335 3,079
Discretionary bonus BISIEAL 1,013 | 467
Pension — defined contribution plans RRe—ERHKEE 28 24
4,376 4,570
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22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 22

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Contd)
The emoluments of the remaining 2 (201 |: 2) individuals for the year ended

31 December 2012 fell within the following bands:

ESREREEEFM(Z)

(b) HEREHFMAL(E)
HE20012F 12831 BILFERS
T2% (20114 : 2%) ANLHH
M TAT R

2012 2011

Emolument bands (in HK$) HENEE (LABTTar)
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000/ 70
HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000 500,001 770 22,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,500,001- HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 78 £ 3,000,000/ 7T
HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 47T 24,500,000/ 75

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (201 I: nil).

(c)  Senior management (excluding directors)
The emoluments of the 9 (201 |: 7) senior management for the year ended

31 December 2012 fell within the following bands:

RER  AEERERERESKAS
BB A TS A EREFBEAMAR
SESRMARE B8 REHIERBER
wE Q0IIF &) o

BREERE(TREESR)

EHZE20012F 12831 B ILFERIE
(0115 : 7%) BRERENE

BT A T EE -

—_
s}
~

2012 201 |
Emolument bands (in HK$) &R (LABTat)
Below HK$500,001 D HA500,00 1 7T 3 2
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$ 1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 52 1,500,000/ 7T | —
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7 22,000,00078 7T | |
HK$2,500,00 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T [ |
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 77T 24,500,000 7T — —

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
senior management as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office (201 I: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

FINANCE INCOME, NET 23 REKAFEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Finance income AMERA
Interest income on short-term bank deposits K HIRITI SN B 504 300
Finance costs &R AR
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITRETHN B (N (145)
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities HEHEREMNEFAX ) €)
@) (148)
Finance income, net BMEWAFE 501 152
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24 FREBIAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated

assessable profits during the years.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to 9% on
the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000)
but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$291,000), and thereafter
at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 3| December 201 | and 2012, a
special complementary tax incentive was provided to the effect that tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to MOP200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3 1,000 to HK$194,000) with the next MOP 100,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$97,000) of profit being taxed at a fixed rate of 9% and

thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%.

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate income
tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%. Preferential rate of 5%
withholding income tax is also imposed on dividends relating to any profits earmed
by the PRC incorporated subsidiaries commencing from | January 2008 when

distributed to the holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

RERKBEBFER LT ERT S
IR 6.5%M TR AT e o

SRPIR TR T3t = 4 32,0002 T (48
ETAI31,000/87T) 1B1EH 300,000
7t (FERAI291,00087T) HFEZRUK
ABENF3%EI%H ZET EEM - ™
FaeBAREERE 2%MH - BE
201 1FR2012F 12831 B I FE e fths
Rl 7T 1R - SERBIUM AR R FiEE
F132,0002 973 £200,0002 97T (18
ER4I31,0008TTE 1940008 L) + &
1£100,000/2FF7C (HBER£197,0007%
TT) BVFERTR AR E E B R 9% -
B % & B AR B A B IR B E R
129081 ©

RS B R B A ) AT B B AR R B 1
EMEH - BETECEMGHER
25% ° B2008F | B I B + A B
P OB B 2 B P BRER B 4T g Il a0 )
BB MBS AV R 2 RIR A AR BB 1R
5 %M BB EHMTEAAEH
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MBERME

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 24 FiBHEX(#E)
Taxation outside Hong Kong and Mainland China has been calculated on the B RFE A AN TIEIRBEEA
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the At ERVRME AN EE KL MERR
countries in which the Group operates. BRITHEHE -
2012 201 |
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TR
Current taxation RiTHA
Hong Kong profits tax BRMEH 1,726 3,715
Taxation outside Hong Kong BABEINGIE
Macau RF 12,468 12,112
Mainland China B A 1,534 2,475
Others it 561 467
14,563 15,054
(Over)/under-provision in prior year BEFE (BEEE) / BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH @311 (487)
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRIRINGIE 84 650
(227) 163
Deferred taxation (Note 9) EEHE (PHE9) 801 (162)
16,863 18,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 24 FiBBEX(E)
The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount ARG B RO AR AU T B RN ER R
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the ARAREEET &R 8N TS
companies comprising the Group as follows: MRS E IR R ZFANT
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Profit before income tax BRI S B AT A 106,939 117,891
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits RERNEMB A A&
of the respective subsidiaries MR ENHIE 13,764 17,305
Tax losses for which no deferred REREIEFTIEH
income tax asset was recognised BEMNTIEEE 1,208 712
Income not subject to tax BRFBHA (138) (48)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AR 1,907 17
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses A 2 I AR TR 1R (4) |
Recognition of previously unrecognised HER 2 BIARHERHY
temporary difference ERMtER ) 186
Under-provision in prior year BEFEREBIR (227) 163
Withholding tax on unremitted B A B A R
eamnings of subsidiaries in Mainland China RERFEHH 355 334
Income tax expense PR 16,863 18,770
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 25 EEFEAREET

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$27,868,000 (201 I:

HK$37,590,000).

AABERFHE ABEGFRAR RS
BHREALRR © 527,868,000 7T (2011
F 1 37590000/87T) ©

Annual Report £ 3 2012 > 145



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

26

146

EARNINGS PER SHARE

@)

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2012 used to calculate the basic eamings per share
includes the 10,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 in
issue as at | January 2012, 290,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.0l
each issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue as if the shares had been
in issue throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 and 100,000,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 each issued on |6 January 2012
in connection with the listing of the Company's ordinary shares on the Stock

Exchange.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 3| December 201 | used in the basic eamings per share calculation is
determined on the assumption that the 10,000,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.01 each issued during the year and the 290,000,000 shares
with par value of HK$0.0| each issued upon the Capitalisation Issue and
Reorganisation (Note |) had been in issue prior to the incorporation of the

Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

26  EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 26 BRERNE)
(@)  Basic (Contd) @ ExE)
2012 2011
Profit attributable to equity holders of ARBIERFAA
the Company (HK$'000) Eitad (FET) 89,943 97,305
Weighted average number of ordinary EEITE B
shares in issue (in thousand shares) EFEE (FAR) 395,902 300,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREALEERT
(HK cents per share) (GREN) 22.72 3244
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted eamings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average BREFRMN DB BRREL R
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive EEEHELARARETE
potential ordinary shares. ShE BB INET B S
&I o
Diluted eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 201 | HRBE2012F %201 151273
are the same as the basic earnings per share as there is no potential ordinary REFELRERFEEMELES
share for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 201 |. B - AUEZE2012F %201 15

12A3IB L FENEREERT
EFRERRBMER -
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MBERME

27 DIVIDENDS 27 KRB
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$000
TERT FET
Interim dividends declared and paid by AEEWBRREIR KRR
subsidiaries of the Group (Note a) R B S (Bt a) — 100,000
Interim dividends declared and ARAREEIRKIKT
paid by the Company f R IR R
— HK3.3 cents per share (201 I: nil) —BR33BMQ0I 5 - &) 13,200 —
Final dividends declared and paid by AEEWB R RE IR R
subsidiaries of the Group (Note a) FIR RS (FfiEEa) — 536
Final dividend proposed by the Company - ARAIRIKNARER S —
HK3.5 cents per share B35 A&M011 £ -
(201 1: HK6.8 cents per share) (Note b) Fhz 6.8 M) (fiFED) 14,000 27,200
27,200 127,736

The final dividend declared after the end of the reporting period has not been

recognised as a liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Notes:

(@)  Dividends were declared by the subsidiaries of the Group to their then equity

holders.

(b)  Dividend was declared by the Company to its equity holders. Final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK3.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$ 14,000,000 based on 400,000,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2012 was
proposed by the board of Directors on 2| March 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

@)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from

28

B I E R EE

FERERBRMET

(@) BRAGHABRESLERTER

operations SHEEHE
2012 201 |
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TR
Profit before income tax BR BT 1% ¢ Al 7 106,939 117,891
Adjustments for: A TEHER/E
Interest income FBUWA (504) (300)
Interest expense FERX 3 148
Depreciation e 2,215 1,570
Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, HEME
plant and equipment R k& EER/ () 42 4)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR M = (195)
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HERHHE
available-for-sale financial assets cREERE/(EB8) (8) 16
Share-based payment SARR AR R ELRE 89 11 3 94 -
Bad debt written-off 12 R 3 — 91
Dividend income BREWA (26) (194)
Decrease in fair value RARBEF ARG
of financial assets EREEAAEE
at fair value through profit or loss o — 15
108,755 118948
Changes in working capital: HEEEE
Trade receivables B HRLRIR (32,259) 239
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TA[I A « && & H b fEUIA (3,251) (3,094)
Pledged deposits EEREX (3,863) (13,656)
Trade payables BHREMNRIE 8,399 (9,178)
Other payables and accruals HibENFIERETER 2,444 10,592
Cash generated from operations ReXBHRER: 80,225 103,851
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd) 28 HZREBERERMEZ)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of b)) REERERERK HEWE -
property, plant and equipment comprise: BERRBHAEREESE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Net book amount (Note 5) BREDHE (P EES) 100 506
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HENE - BE K
plant and equipment (Note 19) R (ER), e (K 19) (42) %4
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment REMERIE 58 600
()  Non-cash transactions € FREXRZ
In 2011, dividends of approximately HK$22,330,000 were settled through FA201 16 + #922,330,000/ L EY X
current accounts with equity holders during the year. EERFRNEBRTRE BEn

RAAGEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BER M

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd) 28 HEBERERMEZ)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries d) HEHNBAR

During 201 |, the Group disposed of its entire interests in two subsidiaries, R-ZZB——%  ZEENERE

China Pacific Logistics (H.K.) Limited and Integrated Cargo Solutions 8000758 T EH R MEME A

(China) Limited to an independent third party at a total consideration of a (fRR (FE) ARAA]

HK$800,075. N ntegrated Cargo Solutions (China)
Limited) ) 2 &t e T — BB E
=)3°

Year ended 3| December 201 |
BZ2011E12831HILEE

China Pacific
Logistics
(H.K.) Limited Integrated
FAYR  Cargo Solutions Total
(BE8)BMRAT  (China) Limited st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
Property, plant and equipment 1% * K5 & & ff - 3 3
Prepayment, deposits and BNFIE - Be K
other receivables H b fElERIE 619 — 619
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEED 383 3 386
Trade payables B HENIA — (10) (10)
Other payables and accruals ~ EAbERTZ IE&JEJ;%??H Q) (254) (256)
Net assets/ (liabilities) BE/ (1) F8 1,000 (258) 742
Percentage of equity interest
owned by the Group rE l%ﬁﬂ’]ﬂﬁ%ttm 80% 75%
Share of net assets/ (liabilities) JEIGEE/ (B1&) F&E 800 (195) 605
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hj%ﬁﬁ%@ﬂ”ﬂ(fﬁ — 195 195
Consideration RE 800 — 800
Net outflow of cash and cash  HENR TEENHRE KRS
equivalents on disposal of: ZEYTHLFEE
Proceed already received B FrSRIE 800 — 800
Cash and cash equivalents in ~ FAFTHI EHTB 2 A)AY
subsidiaries disposed of RekHAeEEY (383) 3) (386)
417 (3) 414
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MBERME

29

152

REORGANISATION

In preparing for the listing, the following reorganisation activities were carried out:

()

(iii)

On 31 December 2010, ASR Limited, a company directly wholly owned
by the Controlling Shareholders, acquired 45% equity interests of ASRCO
Logistics Limited (“ASRCQO") from the non-controlling equity holder at
the consideration of HK$1,237,500. Thereafter, ASRCO became a wholly
owned subsidiary of ASR Limited.

On 3 June 2011, ASR Victory Limited (“ASR Victory") was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and owned by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny and Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard.

On 3 June 2011, ASR Champion Limited (“ASR Champion™) was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by ASR Victory.

On 6 October 201 |, the Controlling Shareholders transferred their entire
equity interests in ASR Limited to ASR Champion by way of a share swap
in consideration of ASR Champion issuing one consideration share to ASR

Victory credited as fully paid.

On 28 October 2011, ASR Limited acquired 100%, 100%, 100% and 31%
equity interests in Pacific Empire International Limited, OA Cargo Limited,
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited and Star Pacific Logistics Limited from the
Controlling Shareholders, respectively. In settlement of which, ASR Victory
issued and allotted 200 shares to the Controlling Shareholders.

> ASR Holdings Limited B2 5 R A 7
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Ed

REHLT  BETUTERED

(i)

(iii)

(v)

\

2010F 128318 ' AIERBEEE
B2 EEAMNABASR Limitedm
FERERFBAREASRCO
Logistics Limited ( [ASRCOJ ) #J
45% X HE - RIB/R1237,5008 7T °
It1% - ASRCOBKRASR Limited#)
2EWBRRA o

201 1¥E6 A3 H + ASR Victory
Limited ( [ASR Victory| ) R#
BRABSHMKY - aRER
REREXWEERS

201 156 A3H * ASR Champion
Limited ( [ASR Champion] ) %
KBRS EMMKIL - RASR
Victory2 B4 o

01 1FI0A6A  ZREREB
BRI ERASR Limited ) 2 EPA%
TEEE TASR Champion ' RER
ASR Champion[AJASR Victory3$1T |
BRARS AR R EBRR -

201 14F 10288 * ASR Limited
Al AR AR ER e BB Y Pacific Empire
International Limited * OA Cargo
Limited » Star Cargo (Thailand)
Limited R K ¥ ZBIRBRA
AIH100% + 100% * 100%K%31%
B - B IEERIR - ASR
Victory[R) 2 IR A% 3R 2 17 K2 B 3200
Bty
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REORGANISATION (Contd)

(vi)  On 3 December 2011, the Company and the Controlling Shareholders
entered into a share swap agreement (“Share Swap Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Share Swap Agreement, the Company acquired the entire issued
share capital of ASR Champion from the Controlling Shareholders in
consideration of the Company (i) crediting as fully paid, the subscriber share
transferred to ASR Victory; and (i) issuing, credited as fully paid 9,999,999
shares to ASR Victory.

During the year 201 I, the Group has disposed of the following subsidiaries to
independent third parties:

(i) China Pacific Logistics (H. K.) Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Jiangxi
Chengbei Airline Cargo Limited, at a total consideration of HK$800,000; and

(i) Integrated Cargo Solutions (China) Limited at a total consideration of
HK$75.

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain office premises under non-cancellable operating lease

agreements,

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

29

30

B I E R EE

BAE)

(i) 2011412838  ARRIEER
BRI L imE ( [HRR%B
&) o REMRGZE - KAF
IR AR R Y BB ASR Championfy
FHEBTRAE - RKERERT]
() BEASR Victory ¥ % #5208 A IR
B ARRIIERR ¢ PAK (i) [RASR
Victory3179,999,999 8% A BR 711k
BRI -

201 1ER - AEBRBYE=HHE
IATHBAE :

() FAOR (FB) BRDAR
H2 & KB 8)jiangxi Chengbei
Airline Cargo Limited * 2B &
800,000/ 7T + &

(i) Integrated Cargo Solutions (China)
Limited * BRBR7SETT °

R
SEREEA
AEERETA B SO LAE HEAE
ETHAZHE -

REBNZENAHEEEHER T
ARRERERNRBEMT :

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR

Not later than | year —FA 3,771 3,632
Later than | year and not later than 5 year —FUERFUA 1,039 1,322
4810 4954
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31

154

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 27 June 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the equity interests in Pacific Well
(HK) Limited and Oriental Way (HK) Limited for HK$100,000 and HK$100,000
respectively from the directors of the Company - Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr.
Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki. The acquisitions are expected
to increase the Group’s market share in the South China regions and reduce cost
through economies of scale. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

The goodwill of HK$557,000 arising from the acquisition of Pacific Well is

attributable to the business development in the Asia-Pacific segment.

The Group does not recognise any goodwill or gain on bargain purchase in the
business combination of Oriental Way. The fair values of identifiable assets acquired

and liabilities are equivalent to the consideration paid for the equity interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Pacific Well and Oriental
Way and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised at

the acquisition date.

B I E R EE

31 ¥ERAH(E)

TERBARERRREXAHRERR
YeiE AR TR EERTAER
EMEHE -

Pacific Well Oriental Way Total
21 RE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERr TERr TER
Purchase considerations BEERE
- Cash paid -Efffie 100 100 200
- Contingent consideration -FARE — _ —
100 100 200
Recognised amounts of identifiable  F7 4 i 7] 38 5l
assets acquired EERFAE
and liabilities assumed BENERSH
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEEY 367 264 631
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 50 |4 64
Trade receivables B 5 MR 2,700 93 2793
Amount due from a related company & U2 B2 5] 28 | 40 41
Prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - e
other receivables H el A 10 — 10
Trade payables BHRMNFIE (1,879) (181) (2,060)
Other payables and Accruals Hib BN RIERESER (166) (95) 261)
Amount due to related companies  FE{TRAEE A 7B (1,540) 3 (1,571)
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHARE — (4) (4)
Total identifiable net (liabilities)/assets FJ a5l & &), & EFELE (457) 100 (357)
Non-controlling interests IR — — —
Goodwil mE 557 — 557
100 100 200
Acquisition-related costs
(included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated WA (GTABZE
statement of comprehensive 2012F12A3IBIEEE
income for the year HRE 2 E R KT 6
ended 3| December 2012) THAX) — — -
Inflow of cash to acquire businesses, HEE KR S 7k
net of cash acquired MERFAERE
— Cash consideration -RefE 100 100 200
— Cash and cash equivalents — B B B 2 F &Y
in subsidiaries acquired BekBaFEY (367) (264) 631)
(267) (164) (431)
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31

32

156

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

The acquired business of Pacific Well contributed revenues of HK$1,609,000 and
net loss of HK$8,249,000 to the Group for the period from 27 June 2012 to 3l
December 2012. If the acquisition had occurred on | January 2012, consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit for the year would have been HK$674,200,000
and HK$89,365,000 respectively.

The acquired business of Oriental Way contributed revenues of HK$1,000 and
net loss of HK$1,610,000 to the Group for the period from 27 June 2012 to 3l
December 2012. If the acquisition had occurred on | January 2012, consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit for the year would have been HK$674,197,000
and HK$89,971,000 respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions, or directors or officers of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Except as disclosed elsewhere, during the year, the following transactions were

carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

31

32

XBReH(E)

R2012F6A278 £2012F 128318
R rBHEREEAREESR
Y #3 1,609,000 7 7T K &5 18 7% 58 8,249,000
BT MKBR0NEIBIBEE
AlF ARG W s kiR A B M 85 5 &
674,200,000 8 7T ) 89,365,000 & 7T ©

R2012F6A278 £20012F12A831R
0 MEBNREEBARERTR
Y %% 1,000 7T & B 48 )% %8 1,610,000
T MURER2002F I AIBEE Al
FRANGARERESEFNED A A
674,197,000 7T % 89,971,000 & 7T

BYLRE

BERE 77 8 AN R R RE S B 1R S R R I
AT HRE BT RE SRR
BRERYENNER  SEARERE
MEARIMNESXRABE

FREMEBEMEEESN - RF R R
HEETHEBENIRETT A TR

(@)  Transactions @ X5
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F7 FibTL
Sales to related companies: ]zl NG
— Pacific Well (HK) Limited —&th (B8) ARAR
from | January 2012 to H0RFIAIBE
27 June 2012 20126 H27H 2 =
— Oriental Way (H.K) Limited —RE (B8) ARARA
from | January 2012 to H20RFIAIBE
27 June 2012 201266 H27H I =
Cost of services paid to related companies:  [WRBEE A B S A5 FO RIS AR A
— Pacific Well (HK) Limited —&th (F8) ARAT
from | January 2012 to H0NRFEIAIBE
27 June 2012 20126 H27H 7,545 =
— Oriental Way (H.K) Limited —RE (F8) ARATA
from | January 2012 to H0NRFEIAIBE
27 June 2012 20126 A27H 705 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I E R EE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 32 BBMERZ(E)
(b)  Balances (b) R
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Included in trade payables: STAB SREMAFIE -
Pacific Well (HK.) Limited &% (B8) ARAR — 91
The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the RATEIER R RARRE
trading terms. SIEREE -
()  Key management compensation ) FEEBEAEHM
Key management includes Directors and senior management. The IEEEABOEESRAERE
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is BE - pEERBENRERNE
shown below: ZEEABNHMIITOT :
2012 201 |
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Salaries, bonus and other welfares ¥4 A REMBR 16,030 13,066
Pension - defined contribution plans BRE - ERENGE 229 143
16,259 13,209
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 33 MBER
The Company's subsidiaries have issued bank guarantees to certain airline suppliers ARAIMBRRGAE THZE R AHE
as securities for purchase of air cargo space. At 3| December 2012, the guarantees BELRITER  ERBEEMZEYHRE
granted amounted to approximately HK$63,935,000 (201 1: HK$49,553,000). fIRIEHR o 20126 128318 - Bt
MHEIR41563,935,0007 7T (20114
49,553000#7T) °
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34 BRERAF

ASR Victory is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group. Prior
to the Reorganisation, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr.

Law Kai Lo, Niki were the ultimate beneficiary owners of the Group.

ASR Victory RN BB B AT IR A
Al o REMAR - REREE - BEESL
ERBEREERAEENRERERE
BA-
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GLOSSARY

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have

the following meanings.

“AOE Freight"  means

“ASR Logistics”

means

“ASR Worldwide” means

“ASR Victory” means
“BAHT" means
“Board” means
“Company” means
“Controlling means
Shareholder(s)"

AOE Freight (HK) Limited (8 ¥ 5 BB A A)), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 April
1991 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Logistics Limited (¥ ¥ BRAT]), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 24 January
2007 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on 3 April 2008,
being 60% owned by ASR Limited and 40% owned by
Worldwide Logistics

ASR Victory Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 3 June 2011,
being 33.33% owned by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Thai Baht, the lawful currency of Thailand
the board of Directors of the Company

ASR Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the Shares of which are listed on the

Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in
the context of our Company, means Mr. Yu Ho Yuen,
Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki
and ASR Victory
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“Director(s)"
“Group”

“GSA”"

“HK$" and
"HK cents”

“Hong Kong”
Py

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board”

“Model Code”

“MOP"

“PRC”

“Prospectus”

“Reorganisation”

"RM"

“SFO”

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

the director(s) of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

a general sales agent appointed by an airline which
typically authorises such a general sales agent to exclusively
represents the airline in a region or territory in relation to
that airline in particular segment of business e.g. air cargo
space or passengers tickets

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market
and the options market

model code for securities by directors of listed issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose
of this annual report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the Company's prospectus dated 30 December 201 |

the corporate reorganisation of our Group conducted in
preparation for the Listing, details of which are set out in
note 29

Malaysia Ringgit, the lawful currency of Malaysia

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time
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GLOSSARY

Sl

“Share(s)" means

“Shareholder(s)”  means

"Stock Exchange” means

"US$” means
“Worldwide means
Logistics”

160

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the

shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United
States of America

Worldwide Logistics Limited(tt REEER D A)), a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on
5 January 2001, being 60% owned by Mr. Joseph Patrick
Monaghan and 40% owned by Mr. Fong Wai Ming Francis
Willy, both being independent third parties
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